
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, July 24, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

 
Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m.  
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment -  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda -  
July 24, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

5. Approval/Additions/Deletions to Minutes -  
June 26, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*6. Recognitions -  
A. Years of Service –  

1. David Kelly, 10 years, hired 5/03/2004 - EHS 
2. Cuauhtemoc (Tim) Buitron, 10 years, hired 7/26/04 - CCHS 
3. Angela Penny, 10 years, hired 7/15/04 - CCHS 
4. Kathleen Hanley, 20 years, hired 7/25/94 - EHS 
5. Steve Kutz, 25 years, hired 7/17/89 - CCHS 

Mr. Matt Smith 
Mr. Kevin Dick 

 
 
 
 
 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2400 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

 
Leslie Admirand 

Deputy District Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Matt Smith, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Denis Humphreys, OD 

Sharon Zadra 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

Julia Ratti 
 
 
 

 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

B. Promotions –  
1. Kelli Goatley-Seals from Health Educator II to Health Educator 

Coordinator effective 6/2/14 - CCHS 
2. Amber English from Environmental Health Specialist to Senior 

Environmental Health Specialist effective 7/1/14 - EHS 
3. Mike Wolf from Environmental Engineer II to Air Quality 

Supervisor effective 6/30/14 - AQM 
C. Retirements –  

1. Eileen Stickney - Administrative Health Services Officer –retiring 
8/8/14 after 20+ years - AHS 

2. Cindy Mullen - Advanced Practitioner of Nursing - retiring 7/7/14 
after 23+ years - CCHS 

D. New Hires - 
1. Dianna Karlicek – 7/14/14 – Environmental Health Specialist 

Trainee II - EHS 
2. Virginia McDonald – 7/22/14 – Bilingual OA II - CCHS 

E. Transfers - 
1. Nicole Alberti, transfer from Health Educator II (EPHP) to Health 

Educator II (CCHS) effective 6/30/14 
2. Margot Jordan, transfer from P/T (CCHS) to F/T (ODHO) Public 

Health Nurse II effective 7/1/14 
F. Reclassifications Effective July 1, 2014 –  

1. Steve Fisher from Dept. Computer Application Specialist to Dept. 
Systems Specialist – AHS 

2. Tina Burton from Plans/Permit Aide to Office Support Specialist – 
AQM 

3. Phil Ulibarri from Public Information Officer to Public Health 
Communications Program Manager - ODHO 

 

 

7. Proclamations -  
A. National Immunization Awareness Month 

B. World Breastfeeding Week 

Mr. Matt Smith 
Mr. Kevin Dick 

 

8. Consent Agenda -  
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  
Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases: 

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air 
Pollution Control Hearing Board: 

a. Chottu-Arco Station No. 82438 – Case No. 1160, NOV 
No. 5414 

 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority -  

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for June, 
2014 

*B.  Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since June, 2014 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

10. Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for 
June, 2014 
 

Ms. Eileen Stickney 

11. Authorization to approve a 1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 
in base wage, retroactive to July 1, 2014; and a 1% Cost of Living 
Adjustment in base wage effective January 1, 2015, for the District 
Health Officer position 
 

Ms. Laurie Griffey 

12. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding 
quarterly report on implementation of Fundamental Review 
Recommendations 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*13. Staff Reports and Program Updates 

A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness –  
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services -  
Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services -  
Food, Land Development, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste 
Management, and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

D. Director, Air Quality Management -  
Keep It Clean – nO3zone Season, Divisional Update—Monthly 
Air Quality Index; Program Reports – Monitoring & Planning 
and Permitting & Enforcement 

E. Administrative Health Services Officer –  
No report this month. 

F. District Health Officer -  
REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Permit Software Project, 
Community Health Needs Assessment, Staffing, Other Events & 
Activities and Health District Media Contacts 
 

 
Dr. Randall Todd 

 
 
 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Eileen Stickney 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*14. Board Comment -  
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

15. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*16. Public Comment - 
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

17. Adjournment 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES
Members Thursday, June 26, 2014 
Matt Smith, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Sharon Zadra Washoe County Administration Complex 
Julia Ratti Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. George Hess 1001 East Ninth Street 
David Silverman Reno, NV 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, June 26, 2014, in 
the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada.   

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Smith called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m.  Mr. Dick led the pledge to the flag.

Chair Smith requested a moment of silence for previous Board member Dr. Myles, who had passed
away May 24, 2014.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call

The following Members and staff were present:

Members present: Chair Matt Smith 
Vice Chair Kitty Jung 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
David Silverman 
Dr. George Hess 
Julia Ratti [arrived at 1:26 p.m.] 

Members absent: Sharon Zadra 

Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
Robert Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Jeff Whitesides, Manager, EPHP  
Steve Fisher, Department Computer Application Specialist, AHS 
Phil Ulibarri, Public Information Officer 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

3. Public Comment

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



4. Approval/Deletions to Agenda 

Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the agenda for the June 26, 2014, District Board of Health 
meeting.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which carried five in favor and none against. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Minutes 

Chair Smith noted the May 22, 2014 draft minutes incorrectly stated that the Board had approved the 
amended April 24, 2014 agenda.  At that meeting, the Board had taken action to approve the May 22, 
2014 agenda so he stated the minutes should be amended to reflect that.   

Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the minutes of the May 22, 2014 District Board of Health 
regular meeting as amended.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which carried five in favor and 
none against. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Recognitions 
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith  
A. Years of Service –  

1. Darleen Bidlake, 10 years, hired 6/01/2004 

Mr. Dick congratulated Ms. Bidlake for her years of service and thanked her for her efforts 
on behalf of the Health District and the community.   

B. Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance Appreciation Presentation for Supporting the 2014 Bike 
to Work, School & Fun Week 
Presented by Genine Wright 

Ms. Wright displayed an ad that had been run in the Reno News and Review thanking the 
contributors and she presented statistics from the event.  She thanked the Board for supporting 
the event and specifically Councilmember Ratti for participating in the Mayoral Challenge.  She 
also thanked the Health District staff that participated for the 437 miles that they logged that 
week.   

C. EnviroFlash Challenge Results 

Mr. Dick introduced Mr. Brendan Schneider who had led the social media initiative to 
provide Air Quality information to the community.  Due to Mr. Schneider’s efforts, Washoe 
County had received first- and third-place awards in the National EnviroFlash Challenge.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
7. Proclamations 

Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith 

A. Bear Logic Month 

Mr. Dick read the proclamation.   

Dr. Hess moved to adopt the proclamation.  Dr. Humphreys seconded the motion which was 
approved five in favor and none against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Consent Agenda –  

Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one motion.  Any exceptions to 
the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
Staff Representative: Ms. Albee 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 11 



1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control 
Hearing Board 

a. Marvin Picollo Elementary School – Citation No. 5412, Case No. 1158 

b. Steve Brown – Citation No. 5413 Case No. 1159  

B.  Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements:   
1. Approval of Grant Assistance Amendment #A-00905414-1 from the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for total funding in the amount of $686,693 
for the period 10/1/13 through 9/30/14 for the Air Quality Management, EPA Air 
Pollution Control Program, IO 10019. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Dixon 

2. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the Board of Regents of the Nevada System of Higher Education to provide 
educational opportunities for School of Social Work students to engage in practical 
application of classroom instruction in a public health agency environment for the 
period upon approval of the Board of Regents and the Washoe County Board of 
Health through June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; 
with automatic renewal for two successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on 
the same terms unless either party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at 
least 60 days prior to June 30 of each year; and if approved, authorize the Chairman 
to execute the Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

3. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the Board of Regents of the Nevada System of Higher Education to provide 
educational opportunities for School of Community Health Sciences students to 
engage in practical application of classroom instruction in a public health agency 
environment for the period upon approval of the Board of Regents and the Washoe 
County Board of Health through June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual 
agreement of the Parties; with automatic renewal for two successive one-year periods 
for a total of 3 years on the same terms unless either party gives the other written 
notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of each year; and if approved, 
authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

4. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between Washoe County Health District and the 
Board of Regents of the Nevada System of Higher Education to provide educational 
opportunities for Orvis School of Nursing students to engage in practical application 
of classroom instruction in a public health agency environment for the period upon 
approval of the Board of Regents and the Washoe County Board of Health through 
June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with automatic 
renewal for two successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same terms 
unless either party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior 
to June 30 of each year; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute the 
Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 11 



5. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the Board of Regents of the Nevada System of Higher Education on Behalf of the 
University of Nevada School of Medicine to provide community and clinical public 
health opportunities for School of Medicine residents during their preceptorship 
experience for the period upon approval of all parties through June 30, 2015 unless 
extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with automatic renewal for two 
successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same terms unless either 
party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of 
each year; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

6. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the Washoe County School District to provide student educational experiences as part 
of career exploration in public health related professions for the period upon approval 
of the Washoe County Board of Health and Washoe County School District through 
June 30, 2015, unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with 
automatic renewal for two successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the 
same terms unless either party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 
days prior to June 30 of each year; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to 
execute the Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

7. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Multi-Specialty Group Practice North, 
Inc. (MSAN) in the total amount not to exceed $11,300 annually in support of male 
sterilization procedures for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless 
extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with automatic renewal for 
successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same terms unless either 
party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of 
each year; and if approved authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

8. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. 
to provide physician consultative services for the Sexually Transmitted Disease clinic 
in the total amount of $10,200 per year, for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with automatic renewal 
for two successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same terms unless 
either party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 
30 of each year; and if approved, authorize Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

9. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 11 



in the total amount of $2,700 per year to provide laboratory director services for the 
period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement 
of the Parties; with automatic renewal for two successive one-year periods for a total 
of 3 years on the same terms unless either party gives the other written notice of 
nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 30 of each year;  and if approved, authorize 
Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

10. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc., and 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc., 
dba MEDSchool Associates North (MSAN), to provide physician consultative 
services in the total amount of $7,650 for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 
2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; with automatic renewal 
for two successive one-year periods for a total of 3 years on the same terms unless 
either party gives the other written notice of nonrenewal at least 60 days prior to June 
30 of each year; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

11. Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the State of Nevada Division of Public 
and Behavioral Health in the amount of $58,000 for the period July 1, 2014 to June 
30, 2015 in support of the Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) Program; and if 
approved authorize the Chairman to execute. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

12. Approve Subgrant Amendment #1 from the Nevada Department of Health and 
Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 
2014 through December 31, 2014 in the amount of $223,370 for the Immunization 
Program Grant (IOs 10028 & 10029); and if approved authorize the Chairman to 
execute. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

13. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the State of Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health to conduct a 
community-based Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) Program for the period upon 
approval until December 30, 2014 and will be renewed automatically every year 
unless sooner terminated by either party as set forth in the contract; and if approved, 
authorize Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

14. Approval of amendments totaling an increase of $15,201 in revenue and expense to 
the Ryan White Part B – Health Education/Risk Reduction Grant Program (internal 
order #tba) FY 14 budget. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

15. Approval of amendments totaling an increase of $8,061 in revenue and expense to the 
Ryan White Part B - Outreach Grant Program (internal order # 11147) FY 14 budget. 

Staff Representative: Ms. Buxton 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 11 



Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the consent agenda.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion 
which was approved five in favor and none against.     

________________________________________________________________________________ 

9. June 2014 Washoe County Food Policy Council (WCFPC) Update to the District Board of 
Health 
Presented by Ms. Kristi Jamason 

Ms. Jamason presented the report.  She discussed the mission and vision for the program, Washoe 
County food security issues, focus areas, projects and priorities, student wellness policies, rules and 
regulations, including the work that will be done to update Reno’s Master Plan, and their outreach 
programs.   

[Councilmember Ratti joined the meeting at 1:26 p.m.] 

Dr. Hess asked if the WCFPC and the Food Bank were related, as Ms. Jamason is associated with 
both.  She explained they had a good working relationship but were not related, she had been selected 
to be a member of the Council. 

Councilmember Ratti asked what they needed from the Health District and local governments to 
be successful.  Ms. Jamason expressed her thanks for the support they already provided.  She stated 
WCFPC had no specific requests but were pleased that they had been asked to make the presentation, 
so that the Board knew what the Council is working on.  She said it would be great to know how they 
fit in to what the Health District is trying to do.  Chair Smith stated that any of their efforts helped the 
community and the Board supported their actions.   

Commissioner Jung noted the Council was one result of the ACHIEVE grant, in which obesity 
was identified as the number one health issue in Washoe County.  She asked if the Food Council was 
doing outreach to find grants to support children who are eligible for reduced-cost or free meals.  Ms. 
Jamason replied that was not something the WCFPC had focused on, although the Food Bank had.  
Commissioner Jung suggested they work with the School Board Trustees to address the issues they 
were focusing on at the schools.   

Commissioner Jung explained she had been a liaison for the ACHIEVE grant.  She pointed out 
that nutrient-rich, low-fat food is expensive, and that low nutrient high fat foods are cheaper so poor 
people are generally the most obese.  Transportation can be an impediment to shopping at a grocery 
store.  She noted that it is difficult to carry groceries on a bus even when transit is available.  She 
requested the County and City websites link to the WCFPC food regulation roadmap once it goes 
live.   

Commissioner Jung requested any obstructive ordinances be reported to policy makers.  She 
explained the ACHIEVE board had planned to go to the Regional Planning Governing Board to 
propose changes to the Development Code to require more walk-friendly, work/live environments 
before development ramps back up.  She went on to talk about the fact that some people do not have 
the knowledge or resources to cook healthy food, so they had found a good solution for food 
distribution was ham, as it was already cured and safe to eat.  She noted that Washoe County 
employees had adopted the Glen Duncan Elementary School garden for the summer.   

Dr. Hess asked what percentage of the children in the meal program were eligible and enrolled 
for WIC benefits.  Ms. Jamason stated she did not have the information but could get it.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 11 



10. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority 
Presented by Jim Gubbels, President, REMSA 

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for May, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels presented the report.  Priority One compliance was 91 percent and Priority Two 
compliance was 94 percent.  Average Care Flight bill for the month was $9,178, which brought the 
year-to-date average to $8,008.  The average Ground Service bill for the month was $1,065, which 
brought the year-to-date ground average to $1,067. 

Mr. Gubbels explained the April report had contained an error and distributed a corrected copy 
for the record.   

Dr. Hess noted the absence of Average Response Time data over the past few months.  Mr. 
Gubbels explained REMSA had updated their Computer-Aided Drafting (CAD) system to the next 
version so it is not currently reporting.  As the new franchise moves forward, they will be able to 
report the average Priority One and Priority Two responses per jurisdiction.   

Dr. Humphreys moved to accept the REMSA operations report for May 2014.  Dr. Hess 
seconded the motion which was approved six in favor and none against.   

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities Since May, 2014 

Mr. Gubbels reported that the Reno Fire Department, Mr. Dick and his staff, REMSA 
management and staff and the City Manager met that morning.  Discussion involved determination of 
clear definitions about how REMSA will respond to the citizens of Reno.  They are close to having 
final protocols so that both agencies are very clear on how they will respond and that they are taking 
steps to improve communication.  Further meetings were planned and the EMS Working Group will 
reconvene on July 11.  He emphasized they were working together to be sure things were moving 
forward.   

Mr. Gubbels stated the ILA is very important, and this is the time to make sure the jurisdictions 
agree with it.  It forms the EMS Advisory Board that brings the responsible agencies together to deal 
with operational issues.  It represents an ongoing improvement in patient care.  He read a press 
release that had been delivered jointly to all of the news stations by REMSA and Reno Fire.  It 
emphasized that the agencies were working together to improve patient care.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for May, 2014 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the staff report.  She noted fiscal year (FY) closeout was proceeding in an 
orderly fashion.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to accept the report.  Dr. Humphreys seconded the motion which 
was approved six in favor and none against.   

________________________________________________________________________________ 

12. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Update with possible direction to staff 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the staff report.  She reminded the Board that the budget they see in March 
for approval contains what the District is requesting.  For this meeting, she had provided a copy of the 
budget as adopted.  She pointed out an administrative change that had no effect on the financial 
information and briefly explained how to read the information.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 11 



13. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Approval of Amendment to Policy Authorizing the 
District Health Officer to Execute Agreements to Amend Simply to Substitute $100,000 for 
$50,000 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the staff report.  She noted the amount the District Health Officer (DHO) 
had been authorized to execute had been incrementally increased by the Board over time.  She noted 
the current status had caused grant delays.   

Commissioner Jung moved to authorize the change.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the 
motion.   

Dr. Hess expressed concern with the proposed amount, noting $100,000 was a large percentage of 
the overall budget.  He opined there were not that many contracts that currently required Board 
approval, so it was unlikely there were many delays.  He suggested an alternative process that 
involved contacting one or two Board members for signatures. 

Councilmember Ratti acknowledged Dr. Hess’ concerns and pointed out that the Board had never 
pulled a contract off the Consent agenda for discussion.  She was not suggesting that the Board was 
not fulfilling its fiduciary responsibility, but that there were many things that were done to comply 
with state law and that they were putting faith in the DHO to be sure those laws were adhered to.  By 
the time the contract is put in place, the Board has already been through the processes and approved 
the work.   

Dr. Hess reiterated his concern.  Commissioner Jung stated she could see both points and agreed 
with his proposal, suggesting the contract be emailed to the Chair for review so the fiduciary 
responsibility of the Board is being maintained.  Ms. Stickney added that during the budget process, 
staff could advise the Board of the contracts that would be presented to them.   

Dr. Hess moved to table the motion.  There was no second. 

Mr. Dick opined there were two issues addressed by the proposal: 1) the amount of administrative 
work that goes into preparation of the staff item for approval, and; 2) the process delay.  The funding 
may be coming from a grant that needs to be expended in a short period of time.  He agreed it was a 
good compromise to consider a process that included the Chair or Vice Chair in an expedited review 
so the Board maintains its fiduciary responsibility.   

Chair Smith stated it was acceptable to him to have the Chair and Vice Chair able to review and 
sign.  Councilmember Ratti clarified they would be amending the execution of agreement policy to 
say that the DHO would have sole discretion to approve a contract up to $50,000 but would require 
the approval of the Chair or the Board designee up to $100,000.  Contract amounts over $100,000 
must be approved by the Board.   

Councilmember Ratti stated she was willing to amend her motion.  Commissioner Jung 
stated she agreed to the amended motion.  The amended motion was approved six in favor and 
none against.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Presentation, Discussion and Possible Direction to Staff Regarding the Fundamental Review 
Recommendation #10 – Perform Cost Analyses of All Programs 
Staff Representative: Ms. Stickney 

Ms. Stickney presented the staff report.  The review would be sectioned into phases, as opposed to 
being calendared, due to the unknown amount of time each one would take.  This project relates to 
Recommendation #1 regarding time accounting.   

Commissioner Jung asked if completed studies with proposed rate changes would come to the Board.  
Ms. Stickney explained this item had to do with compiling information regarding the actual costs of the 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 11 



programs.  The fees are a component and would come back to the Board.  Staff will also present progress 
reports to the Board for feedback.   

Commissioner Jung moved to adopt.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved six in 
favor and none against.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Recommendation to approve the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement Establishing the Regional 
Business License and Permits Program among the City of Reno, the City of Sparks, and 
Washoe County concerning the governance and implementation of a Regional License and 
Permit Program, effective from execution signing date through June 30, 2020 and authorize 
automatic renewals beginning July 1, 2020 unless otherwise terminated as per the Agreement; 
direct staff to return prior to project implementation with a regional technology fee to recover 
portions of the project’s costs. 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick presented the staff report.  He acknowledged the contributions of County Manager John 
Slaughter, Laura Schmidt and the staff of Tech Services, Sparks City Manager Steve Driscoll, Bob Webb 
of the Community Service Department, Ms. Albee, Mr. Sack and Mr. Fisher.  The Health District benefits 
from the County’s generous use of Capital Improvement funding that will be used for the initial purchase 
and implementation of the software.  In subsequent years the District will support the project by paying a 
subscription cost.   

Mr. Dick explained the project is supported by the business community as it provides 24/7 capability 
to obtain and renew permits, as well as paying fees online.  There is support for a technology service fee 
that can be implemented at the time the system goes live to pay for the subscription costs.  
Implementation is anticipated to take 16 months.  The current software is no longer supported so it is 
critical to move to a new software platform.   

Commissioner Jung pointed out the idea had come from the Shared Services Committee, as a way for 
the governments to share more services.  She noted Washoe County had loaned money to the City of 
Reno to implement the software, indicating the commitment level of the Board of County Commissioners 
(BCC).   

Commissioner Jung moved to approve the Interlocal Cooperative Agreement Establishing the 
Regional Business License and Permits Program.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion. 

Councilmember Ratti advised the motion be clarified, suggesting it also direct staff to return prior to 
project implementation with a regional technology fee.  

Commissioner Jung amended her motion to include the suggested language.  Dr. Hess agreed to 
the amendment.   The motion was approved six in favor and none against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

16. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Approval of the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency 
Medical Services Oversight 
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick 

Mr. Dick presented the staff report.  He noted the item had been heard at the concurrent meeting of 
February 10, 2014, resulting in a resolution to continue to develop an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) oversight.  Staff has worked with the District Attorney’s office to 
develop the agreement.  He reviewed the history of the project and the reasons that the ILA was 
developed.   

Mr. Dick explained the EMS oversight program will be part of the Heath District and funding for new 
positions for that program had been approved as part of the FY15 budget.  Those staff members will work 
with REMSA, Reno and Sparks Fire Departments, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and the 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 11 



County to pull together information about EMS services and responses.  They will analyze the 
information and the agencies will work together to identify and update a response map for the region and 
also develop a five-year plan.  The ILA provides for an advisory board.  The BCC had approved the 
agreement and it will be going before the other agencies over the course of the next 30 days.  The 
effective date is July 1 and the agencies are cooperating, so the signatures are just a formality.   

Dr. Humphreys acknowledged the hard work that went into the creation of the agreement.  He opined 
everyone should be proud of the cooperative efforts.   

Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services 
Oversight. Mr. Silverman seconded the motion. 

Dr. Hess asked if the ILA covered all of Washoe County, if Gerlach and Incline would eventually be 
a part of it.  Mr. Dick explained North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District had participated in the 
discussions, but were not a signatory.  Chief Brown intends to participate in that they will be providing 
data.   

Councilmember Ratti opined the staff report needed to be updated.  Currently it states that on 
February 10, 2014, the decision was made to change the fee from 25 percent oversight fee to 12.5 percent 
but it doesn’t distinguish that it was 25 percent of the new portion and turned into 12.5 percent of the total 
costs.  She preferred that be clarified for the record.  Mr. Dick verified it was correct in the franchise 
agreement.   

The motion was approved six in favor and none against.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

17. Staff Reports and Program Updates 

A. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 

Mr. Whitesides stated he had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  

Mr. Kutz stated he had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services 

Mr. Sack stated he had nothing to add. 

D. Director, Air Quality Management 

Ms. Albee encouraged the Board members to sign up for EnviroFlash.  She explained the 
different types of alerts the system could provide.  She explained that the Facebook and Twitter 
accounts were helping AQM get information out to the public more quickly.  The news agencies and 
National Weather Service are tied into EnviroFlash so are receiving information distributed by AQM.   

Councilmember Ratti opined one concern during the Rim Fire was at-risk populations that may 
not have access to shelter.  She requested the information be provided to Health and Human Services, 
homeless shelters and others that may need to know.  Ms. Albee noted they were working on getting 
the information out to as many entities as possible.   

E. Administrative Health Services Officer 

Ms. Stickney stated she had nothing to add to the report and was available for questions. 

F. District Health Officer  

Mr. Dick will provide more detail about progress on the Fundamental Review on a quarterly basis 
beginning in July.   

Councilmember Ratti asked if there was any possibility of changes to the Franchise Agreement as 
a result of the ongoing meetings.  Mr. Dick stated not at this time, nothing needed to be changed.  He 
recently met with the Reno Fire Chief, the Reno City Manager and Mr. Gubbels to discuss details.  

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 11 



Another meeting was scheduled for the following Monday to inform other agencies of where things 
stand and discuss the work that still needs to be done as Reno Fire adjusts their response protocols.   

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

18. Board Comment 

None. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

19. Emergency Items 

None. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

20. *Public Comment 

Mr. Ulibarri recognized the passing of Cathy Jacobs, long-time Executive Director of the Crisis Call 
Center.  He noted she had always worked hard to pass along necessary information when there was a 
crisis and that she was instrumental in moving the 211 system forward in Nevada.   

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

21. Adjournment 

At 2:19 p.m., Dr. Humphreys moved to adjourn.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion 
which was approved six in favor and none against.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

   
Kevin Dick  
District Health Officer 

    
 Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary 
 

 
 
 

 
Approved by Board in session on ________________, 2014. 
 
 
 

 

 
June 26, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 11 of 11 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

Immunization Awareness Month 
Proclamation 

WHEREAS, vaccines are among history’s most successful and cost-effective tools available for 
preventing disease and death, and  

WHEREAS, despite success, vaccination rates for some diseases are not meeting national public 
health goals, and 

WHEREAS, vaccine preventable diseases still circulate in our community and around the world, so 
vaccination is necessary to protect everyone, and  

WHEREAS, when people are unvaccinated, diseases like whooping cough, measles and polio  return 
with serious complications, sometimes including death, and  

WHEREAS, currently the Washoe County Health District has a safe and effective vaccine supply, 
and  

WHEREAS, the month of August 2014 has been dedicated to ensuring that everyone knows the 
benefits of vaccine in preventing disease. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Washoe County District Board of Health does hereby proclaim 
August 2014 as  

Immunization Awareness Month 
and encourages the public to make vaccinations a priority to protect themselves, their families, and the 
community from vaccine preventable diseases. 

ADOPTED, this 24th day of July, 2014. 

__________________________________ 
A. M. Smith III, Chairman 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 

Breastfeeding Awareness Month 
Proclamation 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Health District and WIC Program mission is to protect and enhance 
the quality of life by promoting healthy lifestyle choices, and  

WHEREAS, breastfeeding is a proven prevention strategy, protecting both infants and mothers from 
chronic and acute diseases and conditions, and  

WHEREAS, breastfeeding provides a safe, reliable, and renewable food source, especially critical 
during natural disasters and emergency situations; and 

WHEREAS, employers providing workplace support for breastfeeding moms experience impressive 
returns on investment, including improved morale and productivity, lower health care costs and 
absenteeism, and  

WHEREAS, the Surgeon General asks health care providers, employers, policymakers, and the 
community at large to support breastfeeding mothers in nurturing their infants, and  

WHEREAS, keeping breastfeeding high on the public health agenda is critical to improving the 
health and well-being of moms and babies. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Washoe County District Board of Health does hereby proclaim 
August 2014 as 

Breastfeeding Awareness Month 
in and for Washoe County, Nevada. 

ADOPTED, this 24th day of July, 2014. 

__________________________________ 
A. M. Smith III, Chairman 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  July 24, 2014 

DATE: July 24, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold a citation not appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board issued to Chottu Inc. - ARCO #82438, Case No. 1160, Unappealed Citation 
No. 5414, with a $2,500.00 negotiated fine. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5414 be upheld and a fine of 
$2,500.00 be levied against Chottu Inc.-ARCO #82438 for failure to maintain gasoline dispensing 
equipment in good working condition in compliance with Permit to Operate No. G02-0008, Condition 
No. 6.  Failure to maintain the gasoline dispensing equipment constitutes a major violation of the 
District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 
030.2175, Operations Contrary to Permit.  This is a negotiated settlement. 

District Health Goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes 
and health equity. 

BACKGROUND 

On May 14, 2014, Specialist Suzanne Dugger performed a routine annual inspection at the Arco 
Service Station located at 700 Keystone Avenue in Reno.  During the inspection Ms. Dugger noted 
the vapor check valve was defective on pump No. 7 and the vapor vault poppet cap and poppet on the 
unleaded gasoline tank were also defective.  Condition No. 6 of Permit to Operate No G02-0008 
states: 

All hoses, boots, faceplates/flexible cones, nozzle shut off mechanisms, check valves, swivels, 
tanks, tank fill tubes, and fill tube cap seals must be maintained in good working order with 
regular maintenance to prevent leakage and excess escape of vapors (i.e.. no tears, slits, holes, 
leaks, or malfunctions -- Section 040.080.) 

On the inspection sheet Specialist Dugger noted it would be necessary to replace or repair the 
defective equipment ASAP.  The store manager advised Specialist Dugger the defective nozzle would 
be replaced immediately and that the vapor vault poppet cap and vapor poppet would also be repaired. 
Specialist Dugger instructed the store manager to contact her for a re-inspection when repairs were 
completed. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.1.a.



July 24, 2014 
DBOH / WCSD Mr. Sunil Chawla / Case No. 1160 
Page 2 of 2 
 
After not being contacted by the store manager for approximately two weeks a second site visit was 
performed on June 2, 2014, at which time  Specialist Dugger determined the required repairs had not 
been performed on the defective equipment as noted on the previous inspection report.  Based on the 
failure to perform the required maintenance, Specialist Dugger issued Notice of Violation Citation No. 
5414 for a major violation of Section 030.2175 Operations Contrary to Permit.  During the June 2nd 
inspection, the station manager replaced the defective nozzle on Pump No. 7. 
 
On June 3, 2014, Specialist Dugger received a call from L.A. Perks Petroleum Services advising the 
vapor vault poppet cap had been replaced and the poppet had been repaired. 
 
On June12, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement 
meeting attended by Specialist Suzanne Dugger and Mr. Sunil Chawla, President of Chottu Inc.  
Specialist Cerfoglio carefully explained to Mr. Chawla the citation had been issued due to lack of 
maintenance.  Mr. Chawla was informed that routine scheduled maintenance of all dispensing 
equipment is a necessity in order to remain in compliance with permit conditions.  When the 
equipment is not properly maintained it compromises the effectiveness of the Phase II vapor recovery 
system resulting in excess emissions.  Mr. Chawla stated he realized his responsibility to maintain the 
equipment and that he would do a better job in the future.  After consideration of the facts, Specialist 
Cerfoglio proposed that Citation No. 5414 be upheld with a fine of $2,500.00.  A Memorandum of 
Understanding was signed by all parties. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School 
District to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board uphold unappealed Notice of Violation Citation No 5414 issued to 
Chottu Inc. - ARCO #82438 with a $2,500.00 negotiated fine.  Alternatives to upholding the citation 
as presented include: 
 

1. The District Board of Health may determine that no violation of the regulations has occurred 
and dismiss Citation No. 5414. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5414 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to 
$10,000 per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow Mr. 
Chawla to be properly noticed. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 
 

“Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 
 

















1

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

July 11, 2014 

To: District Board of Health Members 

From: Eileen Stickney 

Subject: Approval of the Health Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report for June 2014 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health accept the attached report of revenues and 
expenditures for the Health Fund for June 2014 of Fiscal Year 14. 

Background 
The attached reports are for the accounting period 12/14 and the percentages should 
approximate 100% of the year.  The total revenues and expenditures for the current year (FY14) 
compared to last year (FY13) are as follows:  

JUNE 2014 FY14 – REV FY13 – REV FY14 – EXP FY13 – EXP 
Overhead-GF $2,898,034.00 

100% 
$2,553,372.00 

100% 
AHS $87,277.36 

56% 
$33,453.43 

29% 
$1,240,959.18 

94% 
$1,305,406.86 

99% 
AQM $2,547,008.72 

93% 
$2,068,697.31 

93% 
$2,139,236.66 

73% 
$2,297,077.30 

79% 
CCHS $2,734,359.03 

78% 
$3,322,667.15 

93% 
$5,762,446.18 

94% 
$5,757,303.78 

93% 
EHS $1,863,111.07 

92% 
$1,828,481.59 

104% 
$4,771,581.93 

84% 
$4,772,941.60 

83% 
EPHP $1,538,574.01 

92% 
$1,833,643.49 

99% 
$2,014,628.98 

93% 
$2,129,309.77 

90% 
Adjustment 100.78 
TOTAL $8,770,330.19 

87% 
$9,086,942.97 

95% 
$18,826,987.71 

89% 
$18,815,411.31 

89% 

GF Transfer $8,603,891.00 
100% 

$8,623,891.00 
100% 

The Environmental Oversight Account balance for June $108,332.11. 

I would be happy to answer any questions of the Board during the meeting or you may contact 
me directly at 328-2417.  Thank you. 

1

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE / EXPENSE

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 65,147.00- 1,970.00 103 51,500.00- 64,834.00- 13,334.00 126
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 98,163.00- 23,473.00 131 68,000.00- 66,728.00- 1,272.00- 98
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 11,559.00- 1,747.00- 87 10,500.00- 10,432.00- 68.00- 99
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 438,024.00- 54,157.00- 89 369,000.00- 391,502.00- 22,502.00 106
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 28,494.00- 4,927.00 121 20,000.00- 24,638.00- 4,638.00 123
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 10,051.00- 6,851.00 314 2,500.00- 5,336.00- 2,836.00 213
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 531,771.75- 52,240.25- 91 448,037.00- 456,429.75- 8,392.75 102
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 94,803.28- 28,281.28 143 49,000.00- 57,547.00- 8,547.00 117
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 92,830.00- 6,793.00- 93 79,000.00- 72,881.00- 6,119.00- 92
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 34,964.00- 262.00- 99 27,000.00- 29,428.00- 2,428.00 109
*   Licenses and Permits 1,455,504.00- 1,405,807.03- 49,696.97- 97 1,124,537.00- 1,179,755.75- 55,218.75 105
    431100  Federal Grants 5,301,515.05- 4,331,820.43- 969,694.62- 82 5,860,619.51- 5,530,260.46- 330,359.05- 94
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 243,178.41- 283,844.17- 40,665.76 117 125,376.00- 142,069.36- 16,693.36 113
    432100  State Grants 741,802.00- 288,991.98- 452,810.02- 39 281,857.00- 99,857.00- 182,000.00- 35
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 5,821.62- 3,616.62 264     
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 314,136.09- 154,411.91- 67 418,766.00- 432,642.16- 13,876.16 103
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 634,731.00- 334,731.00 212 300,000.00- 314,903.00- 14,903.00 105
*   Intergovernmental 7,057,248.46- 5,859,345.29- 1,197,903.17- 83 6,986,618.51- 6,519,731.98- 466,886.53- 93
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 48,715.07- 40,284.93- 55 89,000.00- 62,763.50- 26,236.50- 71
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 2,232.68- 5,967.32- 27 36,200.00- 1,429.74- 34,770.26- 4
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 15,311.75- 4,688.25- 77 30,000.00- 18,251.50- 11,748.50- 61
    460504  Maternal Child Health         
    460505  Non Title X Revenue  15.50- 15.50      
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 4,088.92- 11.08- 100 4,100.00- 4,624.49- 524.49 113
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 37,125.40- 1,781.40 105 113,400.00- 121,848.00- 8,448.00 107
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 457,616.00- 7,616.00 102 400,000.00- 476,829.00- 76,829.00 119
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  791.18- 791.18   430.68- 430.68  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  699.00- 699.00  2,700.00- 2,040.75- 659.25- 76
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 20,092.00- 108.00 101 13,900.00- 17,910.00- 4,010.00 129
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 89,337.69- 87,587.69 5,105 2,250.00- 5,680.06- 3,430.06 252
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 5,406.00- 1,594.00- 77 7,000.00- 9,317.50- 2,317.50 133
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 16,811.38- 4,188.62- 80 23,000.00- 20,879.67- 2,120.33- 91
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 56,813.40- 6,106.40 112 44,000.00- 55,295.00- 11,295.00 126
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 4,931.00- 1,115.00 129 2,500.00- 3,600.00- 1,100.00 144
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 22,411.00- 3,646.00 119 17,000.00- 31,337.00- 14,337.00 184
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 33,827.69- 6,827.69 125 44,000.00- 27,454.45- 16,545.55- 62
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 60,936.15- 24,915.15 169 30,000.00- 49,185.00- 19,185.00 164
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 32,280.66- 32,991.34- 49 40,000.00- 37,254.00- 2,746.00- 93
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 115,143.00- 1,209.00 101 100,000.00- 96,422.00- 3,578.00- 96
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 78,043.00- 57,346.00- 58 84,000.00- 71,259.00- 12,741.00- 85
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 48,683.00- 9,205.00- 84 41,000.00- 47,029.00- 6,029.00 115
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 5,159.00- 9,496.00- 35 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 147,678.00- 40,012.00- 79 95,000.00- 123,364.00- 28,364.00 130
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel  480.00- 480.00   322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start      87.00- 87.00  

2



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE / EXPENSE

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 7,929.00- 2,631.00- 75 8,500.00- 7,707.00- 793.00- 91
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 19,658.00- 2,882.00- 87 17,300.00- 17,362.00- 62.00 100
    460570  Education Revenue 2,900.00- 796.00- 2,104.00- 27 5,700.00- 1,731.00- 3,969.00- 30
*   Charges for Services 1,403,515.00- 1,333,011.47- 70,503.53- 95 1,253,150.00- 1,314,251.34- 61,101.34 105
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 35,843.84- 1,706.16- 95 41,934.00- 37,837.70- 4,096.30- 90
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 82,152.36- 6,111.00- 93 114,750.00- 27,736.64- 87,013.36- 24
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00- 5,125.00-  100  5,125.00- 5,125.00  
    485100  Reimbursements  46,450.20- 46,450.20   269.34- 269.34  
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00   420.00- 420.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75- 2,515.00- 59,713.75- 4  1,815.22- 1,815.22  
*   Miscellaneous 193,167.11- 172,166.40- 21,000.71- 89 156,684.00- 73,203.90- 83,480.10- 47
**  Revenue 10,109,434.57- 8,770,330.19- 1,339,104.38- 87 9,520,989.51- 9,086,942.97- 434,046.54- 95
    701110  Base Salaries 9,191,189.90 8,429,125.37 762,064.53 92 9,442,227.37 8,563,477.09 878,750.28 91
    701120  Part Time 565,939.67 424,177.95 141,761.72 75 529,904.89 517,893.21 12,011.68 98
    701130  Pooled Positions 464,480.66 421,426.94 43,053.72 91 522,298.86 344,928.49 177,370.37 66
    701140  Holiday Work 2,818.65 3,255.69 437.04- 116 1,450.00 1,879.14 429.14- 130
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 165,425.50 161,994.03 3,431.47 98 158,292.00 167,932.67 9,640.67- 106
    701300  Overtime 69,919.68 61,692.21 8,227.47 88 50,325.11 32,578.92 17,746.19 65
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00   260.00 260.00-  
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00 93.52 906.48 9 1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 230,084.60-  230,084.60-  52,986.54  52,986.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  73,652.59 73,652.59-   127,998.38 127,998.38-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  9,750.50 9,750.50-   37,012.99 37,012.99-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  6,038.40 6,038.40-   9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 10,230,689.46 9,591,107.20 639,582.26 94 10,758,484.77 9,803,866.82 954,617.95 91
    705110  Group Insurance 1,422,034.93 1,307,482.87 114,552.06 92 1,449,189.10 1,336,380.53 112,808.57 92
    705210  Retirement 2,515,666.69 2,310,772.07 204,894.62 92 2,410,125.05 2,189,491.22 220,633.83 91
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 136,701.49 129,822.59 6,878.90 95 139,962.64 133,260.95 6,701.69 95
    705320  Workmens Comp 66,992.03 66,138.12 853.91 99 64,187.41 63,932.64 254.77 100
    705330  Unemply Comp 15,375.22 15,179.40 195.82 99 15,533.45 15,533.45  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
    705510  Severance Pay      55,535.73 55,535.73-  
*   Employee Benefits 4,156,770.36 3,829,395.05 327,375.31 92 4,089,653.65 3,794,134.52 295,519.13 93
    710100  Professional Services 1,211,769.83 629,681.62 582,088.21 52 1,091,804.38 585,841.15 505,963.23 54
    710105  Medical Services 9,173.00 10,988.00 1,815.00- 120 9,264.00 5,046.00 4,218.00 54
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 53,537.50 6,587.50- 114 46,900.00 49,175.00 2,275.00- 105
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 53,500.03 49,293.13 4,206.90 92 71,051.00 73,298.14 2,247.14- 103
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 103,593.00 61,147.85 42,445.15 59 105,243.00 72,679.36 32,563.64 69
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 11,470.00 11,847.05 377.05- 103 20,549.91 9,172.69 11,377.22 45
    710210  Software Maintenance 15,636.00 23,573.78 7,937.78- 151 16,200.00 19,344.00 3,144.00- 119
    710300  Operating Supplies 134,869.77 131,852.51 3,017.26 98 132,737.55 140,796.92 8,059.37- 106
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 1,272.89 9,412.11 12 3,685.00 1,398.09 2,286.91 38

3



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE / EXPENSE

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 1,527.40 72.60 95 2,000.00 1,295.15 704.85 65
    710312  Special Dept Expense      100.00 100.00-  
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,321.33 21.33- 100 231,950.00 232,169.12 219.12- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 28,447.00 26,471.50 1,975.50 93 28,274.89 23,674.19 4,600.70 84
    710350  Office Supplies 41,073.50 37,473.36 3,600.14 91 44,171.01 38,620.71 5,550.30 87
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 7,594.00 7,025.31 568.69 93 8,413.00 5,315.41 3,097.59 63
    710360  Postage 24,435.00 18,395.61 6,039.39 75 21,954.00 24,857.99 2,903.99- 113
    710361  Express and Courier 735.00 131.49 603.51 18 610.75 824.68 213.93- 135
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00 78.52 21.48 79 100.00  100.00  
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 24,931.96 30,361.77 5,429.81- 122 45,973.51 31,981.46 13,992.05 70
    710502  Printing 33,970.00 20,621.49 13,348.51 61 31,499.00 17,807.47 13,691.53 57
    710503  Licenses & Permits 7,887.00 4,605.00 3,282.00 58 8,870.00 8,383.39 486.61 95
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,900.00 1,800.00 100.00 95 5,178.00 3,354.00 1,824.00 65
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  633.86 633.86-   452.58 452.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 5,530.00 10,427.36 4,897.36- 189 6,486.00 11,212.41 4,726.41- 173
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 42,484.00 34,784.60 7,699.40 82 46,535.00 38,966.94 7,568.06 84
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 36,065.00 42,969.19 6,904.19- 119 32,320.00 36,926.60 4,606.60- 114
    710512  Auto Expense 19,102.20 10,190.95 8,911.25 53 19,784.00 13,201.24 6,582.76 67
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 11,920.00  100
    710519  Cellular Phone 15,660.00 11,949.74 3,710.26 76 18,447.00 14,424.73 4,022.27 78
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 10,756.01 5,648.00 5,108.01 53 11,926.00 12,114.00 188.00- 102
    710535  Credit Card Fees 11,925.00 13,106.53 1,181.53- 110 11,455.00 11,542.81 87.81- 101
    710546  Advertising 47,600.00 19,500.39 28,099.61 41 44,728.86 58,740.71 14,011.85- 131
    710550  Small Differences         
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  137.01 137.01-   117.26 117.26-  
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,500.00 4,668.32 20,831.68 18 3,000.00 2,594.76 405.24 86
    710585  Undesignated Budget 62,228.75  62,228.75  71,077.00  71,077.00  
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 109,115.00 79,291.56 29,823.44 73 113,439.00 98,172.57 15,266.43 87
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 246,790.79 247,974.78 1,183.99- 100 249,583.98 226,788.69 22,795.29 91
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00 3,616.00 2,712.00 57 9,040.00 5,876.00 3,164.00 65
    710721  Outpatient 93,092.55 78,931.06 14,161.49 85 110,399.15 85,670.11 24,729.04 78
    710872  Food Purchases 10,175.50 689.28 9,486.22 7 11,675.00 5,801.56 5,873.44 50
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00  2,700.00  2,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 47,436.00 49,044.00 1,608.00- 103 17,040.00 17,016.00 24.00 100
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 27,084.14 27,090.56 6.42- 100 25,938.64 27,345.76 1,407.12- 105
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 46,868.56 42,424.95 4,443.61 91 42,163.13 39,019.38 3,143.75 93
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  18,346.00 2,067.70 16,278.30 11
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 55,492.05 42,703.28 12,788.77 77 51,253.35 50,602.22 651.13 99
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 74,502.09 74,502.36 0.27- 100 80,283.41 80,283.36 0.05 100
    711210  Travel 269,811.03 90,045.49 179,765.54 33 251,954.25 68,869.66 183,084.59 27
    711300  Cash Over Short  40.00 40.00-   37.92 37.92-  
    711399  ProCard in Process      407.00 407.00-  
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 2,898,034.00  100 2,553,372.00 2,553,372.00  100

4



Washoe County Health District
REVENUE / EXPENSE

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 135,712.36 105,564.26 30,148.10 78 155,955.08 186,106.68 30,151.60- 119
*   Services and Supplies 6,328,754.12 5,253,934.64 1,074,819.48 83 5,897,250.85 5,004,785.57 892,465.28 85
    781004  Equipment Capital 332,748.07 152,550.82 180,197.25 46 397,107.01 212,624.40 184,482.61 54
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 432,748.07 152,550.82 280,197.25 35 397,107.01 212,624.40 184,482.61 54
**  Expenses 21,148,962.01 18,826,987.71 2,321,974.30 89 21,142,496.28 18,815,411.31 2,327,084.97 89
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss         
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80      
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 8,603,891.00-  100 8,623,891.00- 8,623,891.00-  100
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 8,603,891.00-  100 8,623,891.00- 8,623,891.00-  100
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund         
*   Transfers Out         
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 8,604,543.80- 652.80 100 8,623,891.00- 8,623,891.00-  100
*** Total 2,435,636.44 1,452,113.72 983,522.72 60 2,997,615.77 1,104,577.34 1,893,038.43 37

5



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates         
    460512  Duplication Service Fees      5.00- 5.00  
*   Charges for Services      5.00- 5.00  
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants 88,263.36- 82,152.36- 6,111.00- 93 114,750.00- 26,486.64- 88,263.36- 23
    484197  Non-Gov. Grants-Indirect 5,125.00- 5,125.00-  100  5,125.00- 5,125.00  
    485100  Reimbursements      119.34- 119.34  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev 62,228.75-  62,228.75-   1,717.45- 1,717.45  
*   Miscellaneous 155,617.11- 87,277.36- 68,339.75- 56 114,750.00- 33,448.43- 81,301.57- 29
**  Revenue 155,617.11- 87,277.36- 68,339.75- 56 114,750.00- 33,453.43- 81,296.57- 29
    701110  Base Salaries 846,615.02 771,249.65 75,365.37 91 857,197.23 776,794.79 80,402.44 91
    701140  Holiday Work      43.13 43.13-  
    701200  Incentive Longevity 12,015.00 11,353.50 661.50 94 11,005.00 11,062.71 57.71- 101
    701300  Overtime 1,000.00 3,071.75 2,071.75- 307 1,000.00 1,605.65 605.65- 161
    701412  Salary Adjustment 3,642.80  3,642.80  10,554.54  10,554.54  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  2,035.12 2,035.12-   22,414.22 22,414.22-  
    701417  Comp Time  2,890.17 2,890.17-   16,038.92 16,038.92-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  1,885.60 1,885.60-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 863,272.82 792,485.79 70,787.03 92 879,756.77 827,959.42 51,797.35 94
    705110  Group Insurance 101,100.17 87,983.22 13,116.95 87 95,475.21 91,260.81 4,214.40 96
    705210  Retirement 220,421.47 200,852.41 19,569.06 91 198,461.36 187,126.76 11,334.60 94
    705215  Retirement Calculation         
    705230  Medicare April 1986 12,191.77 11,289.79 901.98 93 12,038.32 12,550.23 511.91- 104
    705320  Workmens Comp 5,124.00 5,124.00  100 5,083.00 5,082.96 0.04 100
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,176.00 1,176.00  100 1,235.00 1,235.00  100
    705510  Severance Pay      55,535.73 55,535.73-  
*   Employee Benefits 340,013.41 306,425.42 33,587.99 90 312,292.89 352,791.49 40,498.60- 113
    710100  Professional Services 36,743.00 104,833.76 68,090.76- 285 45,500.00 80,774.20 35,274.20- 178
    710105  Medical Services 100.00 117.00 17.00- 117 100.00 12.00 88.00 12
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services  2,896.70 2,896.70-      
    710200  Service Contract 500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 200.00 279.50 79.50- 140 200.00 540.69 340.69- 270
    710300  Operating Supplies 100.00 318.13 218.13- 318 100.00 174.30 74.30- 174
    710312  Special Dept Expense      100.00 100.00-  
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,500.00 4,823.72 2,323.72- 193 2,500.00 3,592.10 1,092.10- 144
    710350  Office Supplies 6,963.50 3,077.11 3,886.39 44 6,993.00 3,081.29 3,911.71 44
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 1,000.00 3,346.21 2,346.21- 335 1,000.00 791.44 208.56 79
    710360  Postage 1,600.00 957.53 642.47 60 1,600.00 4,408.46 2,808.46- 276
    710361  Express and Courier 100.00 15.00 85.00 15 100.00 35.22 64.78 35
    710500  Other Expense 100.00 60.00 40.00 60 100.00 50.00 50.00 50
    710502  Printing 3,980.00 824.43 3,155.57 21 3,980.00 470.38 3,509.62 12
    710503  Licenses & Permits 1,626.00  1,626.00  1,700.00 895.00 805.00 53
    710507  Network and Data Lines 480.00 38.74 441.26 8 480.00 460.30 19.70 96
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 3,580.00 2,882.06 697.94 81 3,580.00 3,279.13 300.87 92
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 2,300.00 3,486.50 1,186.50- 152 2,300.00 2,810.50 510.50- 122
    710512  Auto Expense 1,336.00 246.25 1,089.75 18 586.00 1,205.03 619.03- 206
    710519  Cellular Phone 1,320.00 248.43 1,071.57 19 1,320.00 1,370.37 50.37- 104
    710529  Dues 3,980.00 849.00 3,131.00 21 2,800.00 5,352.00 2,552.00- 191
    710546  Advertising 150.00  150.00  150.00 198.00 48.00- 132

6



Washoe County Health District
Administrative Health Services 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost      3.81 3.81-  
    710585  Undesignated Budget         
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space         
    710872  Food Purchases 2,725.50  2,725.50  2,725.00  2,725.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management         
    711114  Equip Srv O & M         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge         
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 5,772.00 5,772.00  100 6,383.00 6,383.04 0.04- 100
    711210  Travel 33,428.55 6,847.89 26,580.66 20 38,165.00 7,946.88 30,218.12 21
    711300  Cash Over Short  40.00 40.00-      
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 3,456.01 88.01 3,368.00 3 3,775.00 721.81 3,053.19 19
*   Services and Supplies 114,040.56 142,047.97 28,007.41- 125 126,637.00 124,655.95 1,981.05 98
**  Expenses 1,317,326.79 1,240,959.18 76,367.61 94 1,318,686.66 1,305,406.86 13,279.80 99
    485193  Surplus Supplies Sales  652.80- 652.80      
*   Other Fin. Sources  652.80- 652.80      
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      61,135.00 61,135.00-  
*   Transfers Out      61,135.00 61,135.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use  652.80- 652.80   61,135.00 61,135.00-  
*** Total 1,161,709.68 1,153,029.02 8,680.66 99 1,203,936.66 1,333,088.43 129,151.77- 111

7



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422510  Air Pollution Permits 584,012.00- 531,771.75- 52,240.25- 91 448,037.00- 456,429.75- 8,392.75 102
*   Licenses and Permits 584,012.00- 531,771.75- 52,240.25- 91 448,037.00- 456,429.75- 8,392.75 102
    431100  Federal Grants 756,090.00- 710,389.51- 45,700.49- 94 912,531.00- 891,875.04- 20,655.96- 98
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 29,372.00- 60,843.80- 31,471.80 207 30,224.00- 27,308.96- 2,915.04- 90
    432100  State Grants 496,381.00- 182,000.00- 314,381.00- 37 182,000.00-  182,000.00-  
    432311  Pol Ctrl 445B.830 300,000.00- 634,731.00- 334,731.00 212 300,000.00- 314,903.00- 14,903.00 105
*   Intergovernmental 1,581,843.00- 1,587,964.31- 6,121.31 100 1,424,755.00- 1,234,087.00- 190,668.00- 87
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  206.00- 206.00      
    460526  Plan Review-Air Quality 65,272.00- 32,280.66- 32,991.34- 49 40,000.00- 37,254.00- 2,746.00- 93
    460527  NOE-AQM 113,934.00- 115,143.00- 1,209.00 101 100,000.00- 96,422.00- 3,578.00- 96
    460528  NESHAP-AQM 135,389.00- 78,043.00- 57,346.00- 58 84,000.00- 71,259.00- 12,741.00- 85
    460529  Assessments-AQM 57,888.00- 48,683.00- 9,205.00- 84 41,000.00- 47,029.00- 6,029.00 115
    460530  Inspector Registr-AQ 14,655.00- 5,159.00- 9,496.00- 35 2,600.00- 2,838.00- 238.00 109
    460531  Dust Plan-Air Quality 187,690.00- 147,678.00- 40,012.00- 79 95,000.00- 123,364.00- 28,364.00 130
*   Charges for Services 574,828.00- 427,192.66- 147,635.34- 74 362,600.00- 378,166.00- 15,566.00 104
    485121  Jury Reimbursements  80.00- 80.00      
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev      14.56- 14.56  
*   Miscellaneous  80.00- 80.00   14.56- 14.56  
**  Revenue 2,740,683.00- 2,547,008.72- 193,674.28- 93 2,235,392.00- 2,068,697.31- 166,694.69- 93
    701110  Base Salaries 1,286,296.83 1,179,003.73 107,293.10 92 1,345,462.49 1,222,676.67 122,785.82 91
    701130  Pooled Positions 27,646.29 6,449.48 21,196.81 23 93,151.68 9,421.38 83,730.30 10
    701140  Holiday Work 418.65  418.65  250.00 140.18 109.82 56
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 20,530.00 20,361.04 168.96 99 19,210.00 19,209.93 0.07 100
    701300  Overtime 3,616.68 2,689.28 927.40 74 10,045.11 3,254.45 6,790.66 32
    701408  Call Back         
    701412  Salary Adjustment         
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  28,316.58 28,316.58-   2,023.44 2,023.44-  
    701417  Comp Time  5,838.68 5,838.68-   918.38 918.38-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  3,721.88 3,721.88-      
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,338,508.45 1,246,380.67 92,127.78 93 1,468,119.28 1,257,644.43 210,474.85 86
    705110  Group Insurance 178,506.32 174,643.89 3,862.43 98 172,127.11 162,974.65 9,152.46 95
    705210  Retirement 335,623.75 306,952.60 28,671.15 91 324,109.95 294,714.29 29,395.66 91
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,296.62 17,180.64 1,115.98 94 19,385.69 17,519.59 1,866.10 90
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,275.26 8,275.32 0.06- 100 7,585.40 7,585.44 0.04- 100
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,899.24 1,899.28 0.04- 100 1,843.00 1,843.00  100
*   Employee Benefits 542,601.19 508,951.73 33,649.46 94 525,051.15 484,636.97 40,414.18 92
    710100  Professional Services 590,571.26 101,084.09 489,487.17 17 385,103.78 154,992.74 230,111.04 40
    710105  Medical Services 1,525.00 1,265.50 259.50 83 1,416.00 1,126.00 290.00 80
    710200  Service Contract 1,600.00 212.93 1,387.07 13 500.00 202.41 297.59 40
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 4,802.80 3,802.80- 480 10,741.91 2,938.06 7,803.85 27
    710210  Software Maintenance 3,386.00 3,530.00 144.00- 104 4,200.00 4,170.00 30.00 99
    710300  Operating Supplies 2,558.77 12,181.17 9,622.40- 476 11,079.55 24,270.53 13,190.98- 219
    710302  Small Tools & Allow  65.56 65.56-      
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 4,400.00 4,889.09 489.09- 111 4,400.00 3,554.44 845.56 81
    710350  Office Supplies 3,500.00 3,725.51 225.51- 106 4,000.00 3,912.95 87.05 98
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 100.00 288.03 188.03- 288 224.00 334.13 110.13- 149
    710360  Postage 3,000.00 3,197.38 197.38- 107 2,900.00 3,586.20 686.20- 124

8



Washoe County Health District 
Air Quality Management 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710361  Express and Courier 75.00 22.09 52.91 29 80.75 589.18 508.43- 730
    710500  Other Expense 100.00 8,965.47 8,865.47- 8,965 100.00 1,662.30 1,562.30- 1,662
    710502  Printing 800.00 1,038.54 238.54- 130 800.00 1,670.21 870.21- 209
    710503  Licenses & Permits     135.00 868.89 733.89- 644
    710505  Rental Equipment 1,800.00 1,800.00  100 1,800.00 1,800.00  100
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  333.86 333.86-      
    710507  Network and Data Lines  5,760.00 5,760.00-   5,635.00 5,635.00-  
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,500.00 3,500.38 1,999.62 64 6,500.00 4,317.02 2,182.98 66
    710509  Seminars and Meetings  4,329.99 4,329.99-  3,005.00 2,898.00 107.00 96
    710512  Auto Expense 500.00 124.23 375.77 25 1,000.00 302.52 697.48 30
    710519  Cellular Phone 4,700.00 3,556.62 1,143.38 76 4,700.00 3,875.34 824.66 82
    710529  Dues 3,250.00 1,133.00 2,117.00 35 4,435.00 4,025.00 410.00 91
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,300.00 3,551.01 1,251.01- 154 1,600.00 2,683.75 1,083.75- 168
    710546  Advertising 1,650.00 7,643.00 5,993.00- 463 1,000.00 11,688.00 10,688.00- 1,169
    710550  Small Differences         
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 100.00 2,979.21 2,879.21- 2,979 1,100.00 1,247.97 147.97- 113
    710585  Undesignated Budget 25,879.62  25,879.62      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space         
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 8,040.00 1,608.00- 125 2,592.00 2,712.00 120.00- 105
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 9,523.78 9,525.36 1.58- 100 8,499.58 9,524.58 1,025.00- 112
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 11,981.33 11,235.40 745.93 94 10,384.74 8,432.09 1,952.65 81
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 12,156.58 9,116.36 3,040.22 75 10,687.05 10,571.63 115.42 99
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,321.78 9,321.84 0.06- 100 9,525.40 9,525.36 0.04 100
    711210  Travel 54,419.48 14,215.37 40,204.11 26 36,088.25 12,104.54 23,983.71 34
    711300  Cash Over Short      37.92 37.92-  
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 34,300.35 22,498.90 11,801.45 66 37,117.08 48,262.74 11,145.66- 130
*   Services and Supplies 796,430.95 263,932.69 532,498.26 33 565,715.09 343,521.50 222,193.59 61
    781004  Equipment Capital 249,176.82 119,971.57 129,205.25 48 342,770.01 211,274.40 131,495.61 62
*   Capital Outlay 249,176.82 119,971.57 129,205.25 48 342,770.01 211,274.40 131,495.61 62
**  Expenses 2,926,717.41 2,139,236.66 787,480.75 73 2,901,655.53 2,297,077.30 604,578.23 79
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      332,303.00 332,303.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use      332,303.00 332,303.00-  
*** Total 186,034.41 407,772.06- 593,806.47 219- 666,263.53 560,682.99 105,580.54 84

9



Washoe County Health District 
Community and Clinical Health Services

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 2,999,048.92- 2,323,709.28- 675,339.64- 77 3,241,513.78- 3,071,220.44- 170,293.34- 95
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 94,381.50- 83,380.63- 11,000.87- 88 15,300.00- 35,645.89- 20,345.89 233
    432100  State Grants 195,421.00- 69,241.98- 126,179.02- 35 24,857.00- 24,857.00-  100
    432105  State Grants-Indirect 2,205.00- 5,821.62- 3,616.62 264     
*   Intergovernmental 3,291,056.42- 2,482,153.51- 808,902.91- 75 3,281,670.78- 3,131,723.33- 149,947.45- 95
    460162  Services to Other Agencies         
    460500  Other Immunizations 89,000.00- 48,715.07- 40,284.93- 55 89,000.00- 62,763.50- 26,236.50- 71
    460501  Medicaid Clinical Services 8,200.00- 2,232.68- 5,967.32- 27 36,200.00- 1,429.74- 34,770.26- 4
    460503  Childhood Immunizations 20,000.00- 15,311.75- 4,688.25- 77 30,000.00- 18,251.50- 11,748.50- 61
    460504  Maternal Child Health         
    460505  Non Title X Revenue  15.50- 15.50      
    460508  Tuberculosis 4,100.00- 4,088.92- 11.08- 100 4,100.00- 4,624.49- 524.49 113
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  60.00- 60.00      
    460515  Medicare Reimbursement         
    460516  Pgm Inc-3rd Prty Rec 1,750.00- 89,337.69- 87,587.69 5,105 2,250.00- 5,680.06- 3,430.06 252
    460517  Influenza Immunization 7,000.00- 5,406.00- 1,594.00- 77 7,000.00- 9,317.50- 2,317.50 133
    460518  STD Fees 21,000.00- 16,811.38- 4,188.62- 80 23,000.00- 20,879.67- 2,120.33- 91
    460519  Outpatient Services         
    460524  Family Planning 27,000.00- 33,827.69- 6,827.69 125 44,000.00- 27,454.45- 16,545.55- 62
    460570  Education Revenue 2,400.00- 540.00- 1,860.00- 23 4,500.00- 1,372.00- 3,128.00- 30
*   Charges for Services 180,450.00- 216,346.68- 35,896.68 120 240,050.00- 151,772.91- 88,277.09- 63
    484050  Donations Federal Pgm Income 37,550.00- 35,843.84- 1,706.16- 95 41,934.00- 37,837.70- 4,096.30- 90
    484195  Non-Govt'l Grants      1,250.00- 1,250.00  
    485110  Workers Comp Reimb         
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  15.00- 15.00   83.21- 83.21  
*   Miscellaneous 37,550.00- 35,858.84- 1,691.16- 95 41,934.00- 39,170.91- 2,763.09- 93
**  Revenue 3,509,056.42- 2,734,359.03- 774,697.39- 78 3,563,654.78- 3,322,667.15- 240,987.63- 93
    701110  Base Salaries 2,810,281.12 2,609,953.02 200,328.10 93 3,000,340.56 2,690,967.57 309,372.99 90
    701120  Part Time 541,787.10 417,847.49 123,939.61 77 505,752.32 495,507.08 10,245.24 98
    701130  Pooled Positions 238,706.33 286,491.73 47,785.40- 120 180,944.41 212,129.55 31,185.14- 117
    701140  Holiday Work  477.70 477.70-   477.11 477.11-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 68,736.00 71,231.03 2,495.03- 104 67,762.00 77,490.78 9,728.78- 114
    701300  Overtime 1,480.00 3,091.92 1,611.92- 209 1,480.00 779.37 700.63 53
    701403  Shift Differential         
    701406  Standby Pay  100.00- 100.00   260.00 260.00-  
    701412  Salary Adjustment 34,459.06-  34,459.06-  75.00-  75.00-  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  30,367.66 30,367.66-   37,005.55 37,005.55-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  209.82 209.82-   7,725.17 7,725.17-  
    701419  Comp Time - Transfer  430.92 430.92-   9,723.83 9,723.83-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 3,626,531.49 3,420,001.29 206,530.20 94 3,756,204.29 3,532,066.01 224,138.28 94
    705110  Group Insurance 571,939.87 512,519.95 59,419.92 90 592,795.66 546,364.55 46,431.11 92
    705210  Retirement 852,757.67 794,582.47 58,175.20 93 843,947.63 774,824.59 69,123.04 92
    705230  Medicare April 1986 45,895.33 44,898.86 996.47 98 47,511.17 46,455.66 1,055.51 98
    705320  Workmens Comp 26,333.09 25,479.12 853.97 97 24,691.65 24,691.68 0.03- 100
    705330  Unemply Comp 6,043.66 5,847.76 195.90 97 5,999.25 5,999.25  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,502,969.62 1,383,328.16 119,641.46 92 1,514,945.36 1,398,335.73 116,609.63 92

10



Washoe County Health District 
Community and Clinical Health Services

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710100  Professional Services 204,547.00 231,831.74 27,284.74- 113 75,150.71 92,468.44 17,317.73- 123
    710105  Medical Services 900.00 644.00 256.00 72 1,100.00 1,048.00 52.00 95
    710108  MD Consultants 46,950.00 44,537.50 2,412.50 95 46,900.00 49,175.00 2,275.00- 105
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 1,000.00 18,321.17 17,321.17- 1,832 1,000.00 12,677.70 11,677.70- 1,268
    710119  Subrecipient Payments         
    710200  Service Contract 3,798.00 3,011.02 786.98 79 7,048.00 3,316.67 3,731.33 47
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 3,770.00 5,132.57 1,362.57- 136 4,000.00 3,027.21 972.79 76
    710210  Software Maintenance  7,324.74 7,324.74-   5,424.00 5,424.00-  
    710300  Operating Supplies 84,799.00 64,077.98 20,721.02 76 85,719.00 76,165.38 9,553.62 89
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 15,797.00 13,286.72 2,510.28 84 15,847.00 12,490.65 3,356.35 79
    710350  Office Supplies 16,760.00 14,876.24 1,883.76 89 16,520.01 14,976.95 1,543.06 91
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,250.00 1,160.55 1,089.45 52 2,060.00 2,053.85 6.15 100
    710360  Postage 3,755.00 4,363.12 608.12- 116 4,515.00 2,545.50 1,969.50 56
    710361  Express and Courier 335.00 68.77 266.23 21 245.00 138.95 106.05 57
    710412  Do Not Use         
    710500  Other Expense 17,095.96 15,002.08 2,093.88 88 32,102.51 23,632.39 8,470.12 74
    710502  Printing 14,200.00 8,827.75 5,372.25 62 10,475.00 9,382.78 1,092.22 90
    710503  Licenses & Permits 3,421.00 1,885.00 1,536.00 55 4,195.00 4,339.50 144.50- 103
    710504  Registration         
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible      152.58 152.58-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,230.00 2,295.43 65.43- 103 2,710.00 2,738.72 28.72- 101
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 19,354.00 15,669.87 3,684.13 81 20,475.00 17,179.09 3,295.91 84
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 6,150.00 7,257.70 1,107.70- 118 7,750.00 5,188.00 2,562.00 67
    710512  Auto Expense 14,966.20 8,793.59 6,172.61 59 16,068.00 10,265.14 5,802.86 64
    710519  Cellular Phone 560.00 1,304.53 744.53- 233 690.00 938.41 248.41- 136
    710524  Utility relocation         
    710529  Dues 850.02 1,980.00 1,129.98- 233 1,400.00 924.00 476.00 66
    710535  Credit Card Fees 3,215.00 1,832.91 1,382.09 57 3,245.00 2,212.33 1,032.67 68
    710546  Advertising 30,145.00 10,467.39 19,677.61 35 34,903.86 45,300.71 10,396.85- 130
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  9.58 9.58-   113.45 113.45-  
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 200.00  200.00  200.00  200.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     15,300.00  15,300.00  
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 67,464.00 38,051.56 29,412.44 56 71,788.00 57,732.57 14,055.43 80
    710703  Biologicals 243,370.00 246,585.30 3,215.30- 101 246,163.19 226,788.69 19,374.50 92
    710714  Referral Services 6,328.00 3,616.00 2,712.00 57 9,040.00 5,876.00 3,164.00 65
    710721  Outpatient 90,957.55 77,352.25 13,605.30 85 108,264.15 83,235.83 25,028.32 77
    710872  Food Purchases 6,450.00 689.28 5,760.72 11 6,550.00 3,812.66 2,737.34 58
    711010  Utilities     2,700.00  2,700.00  
    711100  ESD Asset Management 1,608.00 804.00 804.00 50 288.00 288.00  100
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 546.37 618.06 71.69- 113 550.44 663.51 113.07- 121
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool         
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 711.35 794.55 83.20- 112 711.35 772.96 61.61- 109
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 28,701.27 28,701.36 0.09- 100 31,006.65 31,006.56 0.09 100
    711210  Travel 36,713.00 22,146.25 14,566.75 60 31,184.00 9,627.60 21,556.40 31
    711399  ProCard in Process      407.00 407.00-  
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 5,950.00 23,216.92 17,266.92- 390 7,030.00 7,465.26 435.26- 106
*   Services and Supplies 985,847.72 926,537.48 59,310.24 94 924,894.87 825,552.04 99,342.83 89
    781004  Equipment Capital 30,378.00 32,579.25 2,201.25- 107 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8

11



Washoe County Health District 
Community and Clinical Health Services

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
*   Capital Outlay 30,378.00 32,579.25 2,201.25- 107 17,000.00 1,350.00 15,650.00 8
**  Expenses 6,145,726.83 5,762,446.18 383,280.65 94 6,213,044.52 5,757,303.78 455,740.74 93
    811001  Transfer to General         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      1,007,896.00 1,007,896.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use      1,007,896.00 1,007,896.00-  
*** Total 2,636,670.41 3,028,087.15 391,416.74- 115 2,649,389.74 3,442,532.63 793,142.89- 130

12



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    422503  Environmental Permits 63,177.00- 65,147.00- 1,970.00 103 51,500.00- 64,834.00- 13,334.00 126
    422504  Pool Permits 74,690.00- 98,163.00- 23,473.00 131 68,000.00- 66,728.00- 1,272.00- 98
    422505  RV Permits 13,306.00- 11,559.00- 1,747.00- 87 10,500.00- 10,432.00- 68.00- 99
    422507  Food Service Permits 492,181.00- 438,024.00- 54,157.00- 89 369,000.00- 391,502.00- 22,502.00 106
    422508  Wat Well Const Perm 23,567.00- 28,494.00- 4,927.00 121 20,000.00- 24,638.00- 4,638.00 123
    422509  Water Company Permits 3,200.00- 10,051.00- 6,851.00 314 2,500.00- 5,336.00- 2,836.00 213
    422511  ISDS Permits 66,522.00- 94,803.28- 28,281.28 143 49,000.00- 57,547.00- 8,547.00 117
    422513  Special Event Permits 99,623.00- 92,830.00- 6,793.00- 93 79,000.00- 72,881.00- 6,119.00- 92
    422514  Initial Applic Fee 35,226.00- 34,964.00- 262.00- 99 27,000.00- 29,428.00- 2,428.00 109
*   Licenses and Permits 871,492.00- 874,035.28- 2,543.28 100 676,500.00- 723,326.00- 46,826.00 107
    431100  Federal Grants 412,818.04- 329,098.98- 83,719.06- 80 340,000.00- 288,331.96- 51,668.04- 85
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 27,470.00- 27,319.39- 150.61- 99  1,133.04- 1,133.04  
    432100  State Grants 50,000.00- 37,750.00- 12,250.00- 76 75,000.00- 75,000.00-  100
    432310  Tire Fee NRS 444A.090 468,548.00- 314,136.09- 154,411.91- 67 418,766.00- 432,642.16- 13,876.16 103
*   Intergovernmental 958,836.04- 708,304.46- 250,531.58- 74 833,766.00- 797,107.16- 36,658.84- 96
    460509  Water Quality         
    460510  IT Overlay 35,344.00- 37,125.40- 1,781.40 105 113,400.00- 121,848.00- 8,448.00 107
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  696.18- 696.18   425.68- 425.68  
    460513  Other Healt Service Charges  493.00- 493.00  2,700.00- 2,040.75- 659.25- 76
    460514  Food Service Certification 19,984.00- 20,092.00- 108.00 101 13,900.00- 17,910.00- 4,010.00 129
    460520  Eng Serv Health 50,707.00- 56,813.40- 6,106.40 112 44,000.00- 55,295.00- 11,295.00 126
    460521  Plan Review - Pools & Spas 3,816.00- 4,931.00- 1,115.00 129 2,500.00- 3,600.00- 1,100.00 144
    460523  Plan Review - Food Services 18,765.00- 22,411.00- 3,646.00 119 17,000.00- 31,337.00- 14,337.00 184
    460525  Plan Review - Vector 36,021.00- 60,936.15- 24,915.15 169 30,000.00- 49,185.00- 19,185.00 164
    460532  Plan Rvw Hotel/Motel  480.00- 480.00   322.00- 322.00  
    460533  Quick Start      87.00- 87.00  
    460534  Child Care Inspection 10,560.00- 7,929.00- 2,631.00- 75 8,500.00- 7,707.00- 793.00- 91
    460535  Pub Accomod Inspectn 22,540.00- 19,658.00- 2,882.00- 87 17,300.00- 17,362.00- 62.00 100
    460570  Education Revenue 500.00- 256.00- 244.00- 51 1,200.00- 359.00- 841.00- 30
*   Charges for Services 198,237.00- 231,821.13- 33,584.13 117 250,500.00- 307,478.43- 56,978.43 123
    485100  Reimbursements  46,450.20- 46,450.20   150.00- 150.00  
    485121  Jury Reimbursements      420.00- 420.00  
    485300  Other Misc Govt Rev  2,500.00- 2,500.00      
*   Miscellaneous  48,950.20- 48,950.20   570.00- 570.00  
**  Revenue 2,028,565.04- 1,863,111.07- 165,453.97- 92 1,760,766.00- 1,828,481.59- 67,715.59 104
    701110  Base Salaries 2,961,482.51 2,709,689.58 251,792.93 91 3,018,372.82 2,762,989.63 255,383.19 92
    701130  Pooled Positions 195,228.04 112,103.23 83,124.81 57 236,872.77 99,623.74 137,249.03 42
    701140  Holiday Work 2,400.00 2,660.05 260.05- 111 1,200.00 1,172.34 27.66 98
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 50,522.50 46,878.86 3,643.64 93 50,800.00 47,780.77 3,019.23 94
    701300  Overtime 62,123.00 38,348.25 23,774.75 62 36,600.00 25,484.07 11,115.93 70
    701406  Standby Pay         
    701408  Call Back 1,000.00 93.52 906.48 9 1,000.00 182.10 817.90 18
    701412  Salary Adjustment 199,268.34-  199,268.34-      
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  3,522.66 3,522.66-   63,665.21 63,665.21-  
    701415  Physical Fitness Pay         
    701417  Comp Time  644.69 644.69-   10,144.53 10,144.53-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 3,073,487.71 2,913,940.84 159,546.87 95 3,344,845.59 3,011,042.39 333,803.20 90

13



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    705110  Group Insurance 412,145.94 387,650.60 24,495.34 94 434,110.13 394,276.38 39,833.75 91
    705210  Retirement 773,216.95 707,847.06 65,369.89 92 728,879.94 666,519.44 62,360.50 91
    705230  Medicare April 1986 41,494.29 39,408.05 2,086.24 95 41,940.99 40,526.35 1,414.64 97
    705320  Workmens Comp 19,168.03 19,168.08 0.05- 100 18,838.38 18,838.44 0.06- 100
    705330  Unemply Comp 4,399.22 4,399.24 0.02- 100 4,577.10 4,577.10  100
*   Employee Benefits 1,250,424.43 1,158,473.03 91,951.40 93 1,228,346.54 1,124,737.71 103,608.83 92
    710100  Professional Services 247,318.30 42,710.50 204,607.80 17 325,401.67 7,776.31 317,625.36 2
    710105  Medical Services 6,548.00 8,908.00 2,360.00- 136 6,548.00 2,561.00 3,987.00 39
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 35,000.03 5,056.42 29,943.61 14 65,000.00 10,551.31 54,448.69 16
    710200  Service Contract 95,300.00 54,702.25 40,597.75 57 95,300.00 66,147.01 29,152.99 69
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 5,500.00 1,028.38 4,471.62 19 4,600.00 2,666.73 1,933.27 58
    710210  Software Maintenance 250.00 719.04 469.04- 288     
    710300  Operating Supplies 31,900.00 26,060.80 5,839.20 82 20,100.00 10,341.08 9,758.92 51
    710302  Small Tools & Allow 10,685.00 1,207.33 9,477.67 11 3,685.00 1,398.09 2,286.91 38
    710308  Animal Supplies 1,600.00 1,527.40 72.60 95 2,000.00 1,295.15 704.85 65
    710319  Chemical Supplies 232,300.00 232,321.33 21.33- 100 231,950.00 232,169.12 219.12- 100
    710325  Signs and Markers         
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,800.00 956.45 1,843.55 34 2,250.00 1,584.16 665.84 70
    710350  Office Supplies 7,250.00 8,254.57 1,004.57- 114 9,100.00 7,224.50 1,875.50 79
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,100.00 1,063.85 1,036.15 51 2,400.00 979.00 1,421.00 41
    710360  Postage 13,130.00 7,586.97 5,543.03 58 9,775.00 11,995.11 2,220.11- 123
    710361  Express and Courier 175.00 5.68 169.32 3 175.00 26.52 148.48 15
    710391  Fuel & Lube 100.00 78.52 21.48 79 100.00  100.00  
    710500  Other Expense 200.00 209.47 9.47- 105 8,300.00 1,082.02 7,217.98 13
    710502  Printing 12,600.00 1,783.52 10,816.48 14 11,525.00 1,924.35 9,600.65 17
    710503  Licenses & Permits 2,690.00 2,720.00 30.00- 101 2,690.00 2,280.00 410.00 85
    710505  Rental Equipment         
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible  300.00 300.00-   300.00 300.00-  
    710507  Network and Data Lines 2,220.00 1,373.94 846.06 62 2,500.00 1,380.90 1,119.10 55
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 8,960.00 8,207.92 752.08 92 9,710.00 8,695.12 1,014.88 90
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 21,315.00 19,721.00 1,594.00 93 13,415.00 13,360.10 54.90 100
    710512  Auto Expense 50.00  50.00  100.00 29.69 70.31 30
    710514  Regulatory Assessments 11,920.00 5,960.00 5,960.00 50 11,920.00 11,920.00  100
    710519  Cellular Phone 6,600.00 3,701.80 2,898.20 56 6,600.00 5,068.47 1,531.53 77
    710529  Dues 1,565.99 966.00 599.99 62 1,661.00 948.00 713.00 57
    710535  Credit Card Fees 4,410.00 5,691.06 1,281.06- 129 4,610.00 4,587.72 22.28 100
    710546  Advertising 13,030.00  13,030.00  6,050.00 1,554.00 4,496.00 26
    710551  Cash Discounts Lost  26.65 26.65-      
    710577  Uniforms & Special Clothing 25,200.00 1,689.11 23,510.89 7 1,700.00 1,346.79 353.21 79
    710585  Undesignated Budget 36,349.13  36,349.13      
    710600  LT Lease-Office Space 41,651.00 41,240.00 411.00 99 41,651.00 40,440.00 1,211.00 97
    710721  Outpatient         
    711100  ESD Asset Management 32,964.00 30,552.00 2,412.00 93 11,856.00 10,560.00 1,296.00 89
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 17,182.42 17,187.20 4.78- 100 17,061.11 17,443.18 382.07- 102
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 32,731.24 28,688.51 4,042.73 88 30,573.49 28,806.02 1,767.47 94
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool 16,741.00  16,741.00  16,741.00 2,067.70 14,673.30 12
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge 42,624.12 32,792.37 9,831.75 77 39,776.37 39,243.07 533.30 99
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 21,592.09 21,592.08 0.01 100 23,656.38 23,656.44 0.06- 100
    711210  Travel 94,000.00 36,708.99 57,291.01 39 81,150.00 11,440.32 69,709.68 14

14



Washoe County Health District 
Environmental Health Services 

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    711399  ProCard in Process         
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 89,242.00 45,868.95 43,373.05 51 62,544.00 52,312.52 10,231.48 84
*   Services and Supplies 1,227,794.32 699,168.06 528,626.26 57 1,184,175.02 637,161.50 547,013.52 54
    781004  Equipment Capital 53,193.25  53,193.25  25,000.00  25,000.00  
    781007  Vehicles Capital 100,000.00  100,000.00      
*   Capital Outlay 153,193.25  153,193.25  25,000.00  25,000.00  
**  Expenses 5,704,899.71 4,771,581.93 933,317.78 84 5,782,367.15 4,772,941.60 1,009,425.55 83
    485196  Insur Reimb-F/A Loss         
*   Other Fin. Sources         
    621001  Transfer From General         
*   Transfers In         
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      841,746.00 841,746.00-  
*   Transfers Out      841,746.00 841,746.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use      841,746.00 841,746.00-  
*** Total 3,676,334.67 2,908,470.86 767,863.81 79 4,021,601.15 3,786,206.01 235,395.14 94

15



Washoe County Health District 
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,133,558.09- 968,622.66- 164,935.43- 85 1,366,574.73- 1,278,833.02- 87,741.71- 94
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 91,954.91- 112,300.35- 20,345.44 122 79,852.00- 77,981.47- 1,870.53- 98
*   Intergovernmental 1,225,513.00- 1,080,923.01- 144,589.99- 88 1,446,426.73- 1,356,814.49- 89,612.24- 94
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 457,616.00- 7,616.00 102 400,000.00- 476,829.00- 76,829.00 119
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  35.00- 35.00      
*   Charges for Services 450,000.00- 457,651.00- 7,651.00 102 400,000.00- 476,829.00- 76,829.00 119
**  Revenue 1,675,513.00- 1,538,574.01- 136,938.99- 92 1,846,426.73- 1,833,643.49- 12,783.24- 99
    701110  Base Salaries 1,286,514.42 1,159,229.39 127,285.03 90 1,220,854.27 1,110,048.43 110,805.84 91
    701120  Part Time 24,152.57 6,330.46 17,822.11 26 24,152.57 22,386.13 1,766.44 93
    701130  Pooled Positions 2,900.00 16,382.50 13,482.50- 565 11,330.00 23,753.82 12,423.82- 210
    701140  Holiday Work  117.94 117.94-   46.38 46.38-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 13,622.00 12,169.60 1,452.40 89 9,515.00 12,388.48 2,873.48- 130
    701300  Overtime 1,700.00 14,491.01 12,791.01- 852 1,200.00 1,455.38 255.38- 121
    701412  Salary Adjustment     42,507.00  42,507.00  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  9,410.57 9,410.57-   2,889.96 2,889.96-  
    701417  Comp Time  167.14 167.14-   2,185.99 2,185.99-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,328,888.99 1,218,298.61 110,590.38 92 1,309,558.84 1,175,154.57 134,404.27 90
    705110  Group Insurance 158,342.63 144,685.21 13,657.42 91 154,680.99 141,504.14 13,176.85 91
    705210  Retirement 333,646.85 300,537.53 33,109.32 90 314,726.17 266,306.14 48,420.03 85
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,823.48 17,045.25 1,778.23 91 19,086.47 16,209.12 2,877.35 85
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,091.65 8,091.60 0.05 100 7,988.98 7,734.12 254.86 97
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,857.10 1,857.12 0.02- 100 1,879.10 1,879.10  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
*   Employee Benefits 520,761.71 472,216.71 48,545.00 91 509,017.71 433,632.62 75,385.09 85
    710100  Professional Services 132,590.27 149,221.53 16,631.26- 113 260,648.22 249,829.46 10,818.76 96
    710105  Medical Services 100.00 53.50 46.50 54 100.00 299.00 199.00- 299
    710108  MD Consultants  9,000.00 9,000.00-      
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 17,500.00 23,018.84 5,518.84- 132 5,051.00 50,069.13 45,018.13- 991
    710200  Service Contract 2,395.00 3,221.65 826.65- 135 1,895.00 3,013.27 1,118.27- 159
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 603.80 396.20 60 1,008.00  1,008.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00  100 12,000.00 9,750.00 2,250.00 81
    710300  Operating Supplies 15,512.00 29,214.43 13,702.43- 188 15,739.00 29,845.63 14,106.63- 190
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,950.00 2,515.52 434.48 85 3,277.89 2,452.84 825.05 75
    710350  Office Supplies 6,600.00 7,539.93 939.93- 114 7,558.00 9,425.02 1,867.02- 125
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,144.00 1,166.67 977.33 54 2,729.00 1,156.99 1,572.01 42
    710360  Postage 2,950.00 2,290.61 659.39 78 3,164.00 2,322.72 841.28 73
    710361  Express and Courier 50.00 19.95 30.05 40 10.00 34.81 24.81- 348
    710500  Other Expense 7,436.00 6,124.75 1,311.25 82 5,371.00 5,554.75 183.75- 103
    710502  Printing 2,390.00 8,147.25 5,757.25- 341 4,719.00 4,359.75 359.25 92
    710503  Licenses & Permits 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment 100.00  100.00  3,378.00 1,554.00 1,824.00 46
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 600.00 959.25 359.25- 160 796.00 997.49 201.49- 125
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,090.00 4,524.37 565.63 89 6,270.00 5,496.58 773.42 88
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 6,300.00 8,174.00 1,874.00- 130 5,850.00 12,670.00 6,820.00- 217
    710512  Auto Expense 2,250.00 1,026.88 1,223.12 46 2,030.00 1,398.86 631.14 69
    710519  Cellular Phone 2,480.00 3,138.36 658.36- 127 5,137.00 3,172.14 1,964.86 62

16



Washoe County Health District 
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710529  Dues 1,110.00 720.00 390.00 65 1,630.00 865.00 765.00 53
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 2,031.55 31.55- 102 2,000.00 2,059.01 59.01- 103
    710546  Advertising 2,625.00 1,390.00 1,235.00 53 2,625.00  2,625.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     55,777.00  55,777.00  
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 3,420.79 1,389.48 2,031.31 41 3,420.79  3,420.79  
    710721  Outpatient 2,135.00 1,578.81 556.19 74 2,135.00 2,434.28 299.28- 114
    710872  Food Purchases 1,000.00  1,000.00  2,400.00 1,988.90 411.10 83
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00      
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 9,648.00 3,216.00- 150 2,304.00 3,456.00 1,152.00- 150
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 377.94 378.00 0.06- 100 377.95 378.00 0.05- 100
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 1,609.62 1,882.98 273.36- 117 654.46 1,117.76 463.30- 171
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool     1,605.00  1,605.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge     78.58 14.56 64.02 19
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,114.95 9,115.08 0.13- 100 9,711.98 9,711.96 0.02 100
    711210  Travel 51,250.00 10,126.99 41,123.01 20 65,367.00 27,750.32 37,616.68 42
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 2,764.00 13,891.48 11,127.48- 503 45,489.00 77,344.35 31,855.35- 170
*   Services and Supplies 306,606.57 324,113.66 17,507.09- 106 542,456.87 520,522.58 21,934.29 96
    781004  Equipment Capital     12,337.00  12,337.00  
*   Capital Outlay     12,337.00  12,337.00  
**  Expenses 2,156,257.27 2,014,628.98 141,628.29 93 2,373,370.42 2,129,309.77 244,060.65 90
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      310,292.00 310,292.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use      310,292.00 310,292.00-  
*** Total 480,744.27 476,054.97 4,689.30 99 526,943.69 605,958.28 79,014.59- 115

17



Washoe County Health District 
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    431100  Federal Grants 1,133,558.09- 968,622.66- 164,935.43- 85 1,366,574.73- 1,278,833.02- 87,741.71- 94
    431105  Federal Grants - Indirect 91,954.91- 112,300.35- 20,345.44 122 79,852.00- 77,981.47- 1,870.53- 98
*   Intergovernmental 1,225,513.00- 1,080,923.01- 144,589.99- 88 1,446,426.73- 1,356,814.49- 89,612.24- 94
    460511  Birth and Death Certificates 450,000.00- 457,616.00- 7,616.00 102 400,000.00- 476,829.00- 76,829.00 119
    460512  Duplication Service Fees  35.00- 35.00      
*   Charges for Services 450,000.00- 457,651.00- 7,651.00 102 400,000.00- 476,829.00- 76,829.00 119
**  Revenue 1,675,513.00- 1,538,574.01- 136,938.99- 92 1,846,426.73- 1,833,643.49- 12,783.24- 99
    701110  Base Salaries 1,286,514.42 1,159,229.39 127,285.03 90 1,220,854.27 1,110,048.43 110,805.84 91
    701120  Part Time 24,152.57 6,330.46 17,822.11 26 24,152.57 22,386.13 1,766.44 93
    701130  Pooled Positions 2,900.00 16,382.50 13,482.50- 565 11,330.00 23,753.82 12,423.82- 210
    701140  Holiday Work  117.94 117.94-   46.38 46.38-  
    701150  xcContractual Wages         
    701200  Incentive Longevity 13,622.00 12,169.60 1,452.40 89 9,515.00 12,388.48 2,873.48- 130
    701300  Overtime 1,700.00 14,491.01 12,791.01- 852 1,200.00 1,455.38 255.38- 121
    701412  Salary Adjustment     42,507.00  42,507.00  
    701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term  9,410.57 9,410.57-   2,889.96 2,889.96-  
    701417  Comp Time  167.14 167.14-   2,185.99 2,185.99-  
    701500  Merit Awards         
*   Salaries and Wages 1,328,888.99 1,218,298.61 110,590.38 92 1,309,558.84 1,175,154.57 134,404.27 90
    705110  Group Insurance 158,342.63 144,685.21 13,657.42 91 154,680.99 141,504.14 13,176.85 91
    705210  Retirement 333,646.85 300,537.53 33,109.32 90 314,726.17 266,306.14 48,420.03 85
    705230  Medicare April 1986 18,823.48 17,045.25 1,778.23 91 19,086.47 16,209.12 2,877.35 85
    705320  Workmens Comp 8,091.65 8,091.60 0.05 100 7,988.98 7,734.12 254.86 97
    705330  Unemply Comp 1,857.10 1,857.12 0.02- 100 1,879.10 1,879.10  100
    705360  Benefit Adjustment     10,656.00  10,656.00  
*   Employee Benefits 520,761.71 472,216.71 48,545.00 91 509,017.71 433,632.62 75,385.09 85
    710100  Professional Services 132,590.27 149,221.53 16,631.26- 113 260,648.22 249,829.46 10,818.76 96
    710105  Medical Services 100.00 53.50 46.50 54 100.00 299.00 199.00- 299
    710108  MD Consultants  9,000.00 9,000.00-      
    710110  Contracted/Temp Services 17,500.00 23,018.84 5,518.84- 132 5,051.00 50,069.13 45,018.13- 991
    710200  Service Contract 2,395.00 3,221.65 826.65- 135 1,895.00 3,013.27 1,118.27- 159
    710205  Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 603.80 396.20 60 1,008.00  1,008.00  
    710210  Software Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00  100 12,000.00 9,750.00 2,250.00 81
    710300  Operating Supplies 15,512.00 29,214.43 13,702.43- 188 15,739.00 29,845.63 14,106.63- 190
    710334  Copy Machine Expense 2,950.00 2,515.52 434.48 85 3,277.89 2,452.84 825.05 75
    710350  Office Supplies 6,600.00 7,539.93 939.93- 114 7,558.00 9,425.02 1,867.02- 125
    710355  Books and Subscriptions 2,144.00 1,166.67 977.33 54 2,729.00 1,156.99 1,572.01 42
    710360  Postage 2,950.00 2,290.61 659.39 78 3,164.00 2,322.72 841.28 73
    710361  Express and Courier 50.00 19.95 30.05 40 10.00 34.81 24.81- 348
    710500  Other Expense 7,436.00 6,124.75 1,311.25 82 5,371.00 5,554.75 183.75- 103
    710502  Printing 2,390.00 8,147.25 5,757.25- 341 4,719.00 4,359.75 359.25 92
    710503  Licenses & Permits 150.00  150.00  150.00  150.00  
    710505  Rental Equipment 100.00  100.00  3,378.00 1,554.00 1,824.00 46
    710506  Dept Insurance Deductible         
    710507  Network and Data Lines 600.00 959.25 359.25- 160 796.00 997.49 201.49- 125
    710508  Telephone Land Lines 5,090.00 4,524.37 565.63 89 6,270.00 5,496.58 773.42 88
    710509  Seminars and Meetings 6,300.00 8,174.00 1,874.00- 130 5,850.00 12,670.00 6,820.00- 217
    710512  Auto Expense 2,250.00 1,026.88 1,223.12 46 2,030.00 1,398.86 631.14 69
    710519  Cellular Phone 2,480.00 3,138.36 658.36- 127 5,137.00 3,172.14 1,964.86 62

18



Washoe County Health District 
Epidemiology Public Health Preparedness

Pds 1-12, FY14
Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710529  Dues 1,110.00 720.00 390.00 65 1,630.00 865.00 765.00 53
    710535  Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 2,031.55 31.55- 102 2,000.00 2,059.01 59.01- 103
    710546  Advertising 2,625.00 1,390.00 1,235.00 53 2,625.00  2,625.00  
    710585  Undesignated Budget     55,777.00  55,777.00  
    710620  LT Lease-Equipment         
    710703  Biologicals 3,420.79 1,389.48 2,031.31 41 3,420.79  3,420.79  
    710721  Outpatient 2,135.00 1,578.81 556.19 74 2,135.00 2,434.28 299.28- 114
    710872  Food Purchases 1,000.00  1,000.00  2,400.00 1,988.90 411.10 83
    711010  Utilities 180.00  180.00      
    711100  ESD Asset Management 6,432.00 9,648.00 3,216.00- 150 2,304.00 3,456.00 1,152.00- 150
    711113  Equip Srv Replace 377.94 378.00 0.06- 100 377.95 378.00 0.05- 100
    711114  Equip Srv O & M 1,609.62 1,882.98 273.36- 117 654.46 1,117.76 463.30- 171
    711115  Equip Srv Motor Pool     1,605.00  1,605.00  
    711117  ESD Fuel Charge     78.58 14.56 64.02 19
    711119  Prop & Liab Billings 9,114.95 9,115.08 0.13- 100 9,711.98 9,711.96 0.02 100
    711210  Travel 51,250.00 10,126.99 41,123.01 20 65,367.00 27,750.32 37,616.68 42
    711504  Equipment nonCapital 2,764.00 13,891.48 11,127.48- 503 45,489.00 77,344.35 31,855.35- 170
*   Services and Supplies 306,606.57 324,113.66 17,507.09- 106 542,456.87 520,522.58 21,934.29 96
    781004  Equipment Capital     12,337.00  12,337.00  
*   Capital Outlay     12,337.00  12,337.00  
**  Expenses 2,156,257.27 2,014,628.98 141,628.29 93 2,373,370.42 2,129,309.77 244,060.65 90
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      310,292.00 310,292.00-  
**  Other Financing Src/Use      310,292.00 310,292.00-  
*** Total 480,744.27 476,054.97 4,689.30 99 526,943.69 605,958.28 79,014.59- 115

19



Washoe County Health District 
Undesignated 
Pds 1-12, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
    710400  Payments to Other Agencies         
    711400  Overhead - General Fund 2,898,034.00 2,898,034.00  100 2,553,372.00 2,553,372.00  100
**  Expenses 2,898,034.00 2,898,034.00  100 2,553,372.00 2,553,372.00  100
    621001  Transfer From General 8,603,891.00- 8,603,891.00-  100 8,623,891.00- 8,623,891.00-  100
*   Transfers In 8,603,891.00- 8,603,891.00-  100 8,623,891.00- 8,623,891.00-  100
    818000  Transfer to Intrafund      2,553,372.00- 2,553,372.00  
*   Transfers Out      2,553,372.00- 2,553,372.00  
**  Other Financing Src/Use 8,603,891.00- 8,603,891.00-  100 8,623,891.00- 11,177,263.00- 2,553,372.00 130
*** Total 5,705,857.00- 5,705,857.00-  100 6,070,519.00- 8,623,891.00- 2,553,372.00 142

20



Washoe County Health District 
Miscellaneous
Pds 1-12, FY14

Accounts 2014 Plan 2014 Actuals Balance Act% 2013 Plan 2013 Actual Balance Act%
   710551 Cash Discounts Lost  100.78 100.78      
*** Total 100.78 100.78

21



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  July 24, 2014 

DATE: June 27, 2014 

TO:  District Board of Health 

THROUGH: Eileen Stickney, Administrative Health Services Officer 

FROM: Laurie Griffey, Admin Assistant I / HR Rep, Washoe County Health District       
775-328-2403, lgriffey@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Authorization to approve a 1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) in base 
wage, retroactive to July 1, 2014; and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment in 
base wage effective January 1, 2015, for the District Health Officer position.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve a 1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment 
in base wage, retroactive to July 1, 2014;  and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage 
effective January 1, 2015, for the District Health Officer position.   

BACKGROUND 

The District Board of Health has the ability to determine salary/compensation for the District 
Health Officer position.  The employment agreement between the District Board of Health and 
Mr. Kevin Dick, approved and signed at the January, 23, 2014 regularly scheduled meeting, 
states under Section 4 Item B – “Employee’s annual salary may be adjusted as follows, by a vote 
of the Board, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9:  a) A cost of living adjustment consistent 
with any cost-of-living adjustment provided to other unclassified management employees of 
Washoe County; and/or, b) The Board may adjust the annual salary of the Employee by 
increasing the base salary until the maximum of the salary range is reached.”     

The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) approved a 1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment in base 
wage effective July 1, 2014, and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment effective January 1, 2015, for 
all Unclassified Management.  To ensure the District Health Officer is granted the same benefits 
and compensation provided to other Washoe County Unclassified Management; the District 
Board of Health is requested to approve the same Cost of Living increases for the District Health 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.

mailto:lgriffey@washoecounty.us


Date – 6/27/14 
Subject: - Staff Rpt –DHO COLA 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Officer as were approved for the Unclassified Management by the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

Upon approval by the District Board of Health, a letter will be drafted to the Washoe County 
Human Resource Department advising them to make the necessary adjustments to Mr. Dick’s 
wages to align them with the COLA adjustments granted Unclassified Management by the Board 
of County Commissioners on June 17, 2014.   

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On June 26, 2012, the District Board of Health approved wage and benefit concession 
adjustments from 5% to 4.5% and discontinued health cost benefit contributions for the District 
Health Officer, and moved to revisit these reductions for possible reconciliation should another 
association agree to or are awarded a different percentage reduction or cost-of-living increase. 
This approval was in accordance with the concessions approved for management by the Board of 
County Commissioners at their June 12, 2012 meeting.  
 
On August 23, 2012, the District Board of Health approved the elimination of wage and benefit 
concessions effective July 2, 2012, and reinstituted merit increases and career incentive 
payments, for the District Health Officer effective July 1, 2012, in line with the actions taken by 
the Board of County Commissioners for unclassified management. 
 
On September 24, 2013, the Board of County Commissioners approved a 1% Cost of Living 
Adjustment in base wage effective July 1, 2013, a 1% PERS contribution in lieu of a wage 
increase effective July 15, 2013, and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment effective January 1, 2014 
for Unclassified Management and unrepresented Confidential employees. 
 
On January 23, 2014, the District Board of Health approved an Employment Agreement with 
Mr. Kevin Dick, for the position of District Health Officer at a base wage of $132,537.60.  The 
employment agreement contains a provision that the annual salary may be adjusted by a vote of 
the Board for cost of living adjustments consistent with any cost-of-living adjustment provided 
to other unclassified management employees of Washoe County; and/or the Board may adjust 
the annual salary of the District Health Officer position by increasing the base salary until the 
maximum of the salary range is reached.    
 
On February 27, 2014, the District Board of Health approved a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment 
in base wage effective July 1, 2013, a 1% PERS contribution in lieu of a wage increase effective 
July 15, 2013, and a 1% Cost of Living Adjustment effective January 1, 2014, for the District 
Health Officer position; to bring him into alignment with other unclassified management 
employees of Washoe County. 

 



Date – 6/27/14 
Subject: - Staff Rpt –DHO COLA 
Page 3 of 3 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The annual fiscal impact associated with the 1.5% COLA increase, effective July 1, 2014, was 
anticipated and included in the FY15 budget. 

The 1% COLA effective January 1, 2015, equaling approximately $686 will be managed within 
the Health Fund.  

POSSIBLE MOTION: 

Should the Board agree with Staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be:  “Approve a 
1.5% Cost of Living Adjustment in base wage, effective July 1, 2014; and a 1% Cost of Living 
Adjustment effective January 1, 2015, for the District Health Officer position.”  
 
 
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

DATE: July 24, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Direction to Staff regarding quarterly 
report on implementation of Fundamental Review Recommendations 

Summary 

The Washoe County Health District Fundamental Review was presented to the District Board of 
Health on February 27, 2014.  On March 27, 2014 the DBOH approved an implementation plan 
for the recommendations provided in the Fundamental Review.  This report provides an update 
on implementation that has occurred since that time. A dashboard providing color-coded status 
of recommendations is attached. 

Implementation 

Staff recommends that the DBOH consider the proposed implementation of the Fundamental 
Review recommendations as each is addressed below.  The timeframes noted are the groupings 
from the fundamental review, and the recommendations are numbered sequentially rather than 
separately for each timeframe grouping. 

1. Place the WIC program organizationally where it is most closely aligned with other
similar programmatic functions.

a) Completed.  WIC was moved to CCHS effective January 21, 2014.  The
integration of delivery of other CCHS services to WIC clients is underway with
scheduling of other clinical services in conjunction with WIC client scheduling
beginning on July 15, 2014.

2. Develop a Washoe County District Board of Health orientation manual and program.
a) Underway.  An orientation program and draft manual are being developed and

will be provided to the DBOH for consideration and possible approval August 28,
2014. 

3. Strengthen customer focus within regulatory programs exploring the potential for User
Groups to share consumer viewpoints while continuing to focus on the purpose of
regulatory efforts.

a) Implement this recommendation by establishing a land development and
construction user group, and a food service user group to share consumer
viewpoints of the regulatory programs provided through AQM and EHS.
Establish user groups with initial meetings by July 1, 2014.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2416 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

Underway. A land development and construction user group (land development 
group) was established and met on May 15, and June 12.  The group discussed 
key issues related to the final map approval process.  Representatives from the 
Chamber of Commerce, TMWA and NDEP also participated in the meetings 
which were hosted by the Builders Association of Northern Nevada (BANN).  
The next meeting is scheduled for August 12.  

4. Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective. 
a) Implement this recommendation initially by shifting CCHS staff resources as 

budget allows to begin providing immunization services at the Health District five 
days a week.   If funding for a vital records position is provided in the FY14/15 
budget begin providing vital records services five days a week and during lunch 
hours.  Provide walk in access for immunization services. 
Underway.  Home visiting program resources have been shifted to provide five 
day per week immunization program services at the health district.  This schedule 
began initially on July 22 with four hours of service provided on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays.  Hours will be expanded to full day service on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays as vacant positions are filled. 

Funding for additional vital records staff was included in the FY 14/15 adopted 
budget.  Recruitment for this Office Assistant II position has been initiated.  The 
additional staff will allow the program to provide service to the public five days 
per week and over the lunch hour. 

b) Longer term: Assess current after hours and weekend services provided and 
provide this information to DBOH.  Consider opportunities and costs for extended 
hours/weekend provision of clinical services. 
Underway.  Immunization service hours have been extended to provide evening 
access by scheduling staffing from 10 am to 7 pm on the first, third, and fifth 
Wednesdays of the month.  This provides expanded hours of access at no 
additional cost by shifting staff schedules and utilizing extended hours security 
services already provided for the family planning program and sexual health 
services. 

c) Longer Term: Explore opportunity to utilize Interactive Voice Response (IVR) 
software, which will be acquired for the regional permit software platform to 
automate clinical services scheduling. 
Underway.  Discussion has begun with Selectron, the IVR provider for the permit 
software project and Netsmart, the Insight software supplier.  Selectron is not 
currently HIPAA compliant but is willing to meet this Netsmart requirement for 
this project to proceed.  CCHS will continue to facilitate this process in order for 
this project to progress. 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

5. Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services 
provided. 

a) Implement this recommendation initially by improving clinical billing through 
utilization of a third-party billing service by August 1, 2014.  Establish contracts 
with insurance providers and Medicaid for reimbursement by July 1, 2014. 
Underway. Third-party billing began on July 1, 2014 using Netsmart’s Insight 
Revenue Cycle Management (RCM) Program.  The CCHS Division Director is 
meeting with the Deputy District Attorney July 17, 2014, to discuss her concerns 
and answer questions regarding the four contracts submitted for legal review. 

b) Intermediate Term:  Identify costs for permits and services, which currently are 
not being charged, but are clearly a cost that should be included in fee schedules 
under the existing fee determination approach and adjust fees or propose new fees 
as appropriate to be included in the FY16 budget cycle. 

c) Longer Term:  Determine what costs of regulatory programs may be included in 
fee schedules.  Determine these costs and discuss potential changes to the fee 
schedule with the regulated community.  As directed by DBOH, propose updated 
fee schedules and hold workshops and public hearings. 

d) Intermediate and Longer Term:  Identify community and clinical services that 
are offered, or might be offered through the Health District for which 
reimbursement is available and would benefit the community.  Provide and bill 
for these services. 

6. Explore and vet a tiered level of services for environmental health regulatory programs 
and inspections 

a) “Parking Lot.”  Consider the desire and support for this type of tiered structure 
in the user groups, potential impacts to overall service levels, and consider this 
item in the larger context of the updated fee schedules addressed under 
Recommendation 5 (above). 

7. Participate in the business process analysis currently underway across all building 
permitting in the county. 

a) Underway.  The DBOH, Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County signed an Interlocal 
Agreement to formalize participation in the Regional Business License and Permit 
Software Project in June, 2014.  On June 30, 2014, Washoe County signed a 
contract with Accela for subscriptions to the software and implementation of the 
project.  A 16-month implementation schedule to “go live” commences the week 
of July 22, 2014 with a visit from the Accela implementation team. 

8. Strengthen organizational effectiveness by developing infrastructure to support the 
District Health Officer. 

a) Underway.  The Office of the District Health Officer (ODHO) was established 
July 1, 2014 under the adopted FY14/15 budget. The ODHO includes the Health 
Officer, Public Health Communications Program Manager, QI Officer, and 
Administrative Secretary. In addition, the Nevada Public Health Foundation 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

Independent Contractor conducting the Community Health Assessment is housed 
in the ODHO.  In the future, additional resources to support a Special 
Projects/Community Health Assessment type position within the ODHO will be 
explored 

9. Implement time coding for employees in order to generate an accurate accounting of how 
employee time/costs are allocated. 

a) Implement: Time Coding in EHS has been expanded to better capture employee 
time allocations.  Assess expanding enhanced time coding in AQM and other 
programs, and the ability to further refine this time coding within limitations of 
existing time accounting software, opportunities that may exist with other 
software investments, and in consideration of additional future capabilities of the 
regional permitting software platform. 
Underway. Time Coding in EHS and AQM is underway.  Significant difficulties 
with time coding for grant funded activities was encountered because SAP does 
not allow statistical orders in this instance.  Time coding is being attempted 
through notations, but the ease and ability to conduct data analysis of these times 
has not yet been determined. 

10. Perform cost analysis of all programs 
a) Implement this recommendation by developing a schedule for conducting cost 

analysis of programs, and a cost analysis methodology.  Report progress to 
DBOH on June 26, 2014. 
Status: DBOH approved the phased schedule for cost analysis of Health District 
programs presented on June 26, 2014.  The “pilot” phase cost analysis of AHS 
will occur after the AHSO position is filled upon Ms. Stickney’s retirement. 

11. Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies 
a) Assess need for fiscal staffing and administrative staffing as workload for 

program cost analysis is conducted.   
12. Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address the tensions regarding 

overhead/direct costs 
a) Underway.  Approval of an additional $1.4 million in the FY 14/15 General 

Funds Transfer from Washoe has substantially reduced current tensions regarding 
overhead/direct costs.  However, work with the County Manager and Board of 
County Commissioners, cost control, and revenue generation, must continue to 
maintain the County’s support for the Health District in the future.  Even with the 
substantial increase in the General Fund transfer the adopted FY 14/15 Health 
District budget would not have balanced without an ending fund balance of over 
$650,000 largely attributable to vacancy savings during FY 13/14.  

13. Align programs and services with public demand for services to reflect burden of disease 
and effective public health intervention 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

a) Implement this recommendation initially by shifting home visiting resources to 
provide additional clinical services to mothers and children visiting the WIC 
program and to provide immunization services five days a week.  Consider some 
provision of more targeted home visiting program services for failure to thrive 
and special medical need infants where services are desired and can be delivered 
effectively. 
Completed. Home visiting services were curtailed effective June 1, 2014.  
Resources have been redeployed to support MCH and immunization clinical 
services to clients at the Health District and to integrate the delivery of these 
services with the WIC program. 

b) Assess changes in service levels and program alignment in light of results of the 
Community Health Assessment, Community Health Improvement Plan, and 
Strategic Plan actions, or as needed to respond to service level reductions required 
by reductions in funding. 

14. Conduct a Community Health Assessment (CHA) in concert with current partner 
organizations for Washoe County Health District and constituent communities. 

a) Implement this recommendation.  Discussions are underway for a collaborative 
effort to conduct a Community Health Assessment involving Renown, the Health 
District, Human Services, and potentially Saint Mary’s as supporters of the 
initiative.  $20,000 has been included in the FY15 budget to support this effort. 
Underway. In collaboration with Renown the Health District has established a 
contract with the Nevada Public Health Foundation to conduct a Community 
Health Needs Assessment.  Charles Schwab Bank has committed funding to the 
project, and Washoe County Human Services has also agreed to provide funding 
support to the project.  An Independent Contractor hired by the NPHF began work 
on the project in May 2014.  The work is guided by a subcommittee to the Health 
Communities Conference planning committee that includes the Health District, 
Renown, Michael Johnson (formerly with St. Mary’s Foundation and Community 
Health Alliance), and Northern Nevada Medical Center.  Current work includes 
analyses of health status and risk data, and conducting focus groups to receive 
input from low to moderate income populations on their views of a healthy 
community and their health needs. The Community Health Assessment is 
expected to be completed by January 2015. 

15. Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health 
Implement this recommendation.  

a)  Implement this recommendation.  During FY15, programs will continue to 
identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and which tell our 
story to our partners and the community.  Outcome based measures will also be 
developed which can be used in assessing progress to address public health issues 
and which provide opportunities to critically evaluate delivery of Health District 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

services.  This will be an ongoing continuous quality improvement process.  
These metrics will be reported to the Board. 

16. Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues with 
engagement of key partners and stakeholders 

a) Underway.  An Amended and Restated Franchise for Emergency Ambulance 
Services with REMSA was signed by REMSA and DBOH in May 2014.  The 
agreement provides for additional data reporting by REMSA, and enhanced 
oversight by DBOH.   
An Interlocal Agreement for the District Board of Health to provide Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Oversight of REMSA, Reno Fire Department EMS, 
Sparks Fire Department EMS, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District EMS, 
and associated EMS dispatch functions was signed by the Board of County 
Commissioners and DBOH in June 2014 and is expected to be signed by the other 
governing bodies during July.  Budget for additional Health District EMS 
program staffing was included in the FY14/15 adopted budget and recruitment for 
these positions has been initiated. 

17. Maintain current levels of local and state financial support 
a) Implement. Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 

12 above. 
b) Implement. Advocate to sustain or enhance funding through State Agencies that 

aligns with Health District Programs and priorities. 
18. Conduct a governance assessment utilizing the National Association of Local Boards of 

Health (NALBOH) Version 3 of the National Public Health Performance Standards. 
a) Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to conduct the 

assessment. 
19. Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key health district goals and 

objectives so that priorities are clearly articulated for the board, staff, stakeholders and 
community. 

a) Implement recommendation by conducting a strategic planning initiative 
following the completion of the Community Health Assessment and a Community 
Health Improvement Plan.  

20. Implement a performance management system 
a) Longer Term: Utilize the results of the program cost analysis, metrics developed 

under Recommendation 15, and the Strategic Plan developed under 
Recommendation 19 to develop and implement a performance management 
system. 

21. Consider alternative governance structures in order to accommodate multiple related but 
potentially competing objectives 

a) This is not a recommendation for staff action. 
22. Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration 



Subject: Fundamental Review Quarterly Report 
Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 

a) Short Term: The Health District needs to be prepared to respond to legislative 
and regulatory issues.  However, it is recommended that the initial Health District 
efforts in response to the Fundamental Review recommendations are to focus on 
internal and local issues. 

b) Longer Term: Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role once the 
bulk of the fundamental review recommendations are implemented and the Health 
District is operating sustainably, and is engaged and supported at the local level. 

23. Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps. 
a) Underway.  Training and discussion sessions have been provided to develop 

management team support and investment for a Quality Improvement Initiative.  
The initiative has been launched with the establishment of a cross-divisional 
Quality Team (Q Team) and training and coaching of these staff through pilot 
project implementation. The Q-Team is wrapping up initial projects they 
facilitated with other members of their Division or Cross-Divisional project 
teams.  Project updates were provided during the July 1 General Staff meeting.  
Next steps will to be to assess how to streamline documentation and process for 
QI project implementation based on experience to date, and to select priority QI 
projects for future implementation, 

24. Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation 
a) Longer Term: Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the 

Community Health Assessment, Community Health Improvement Plan, and the 
Strategic Plan have been completed. 

Possible Motion 

A possible motion would be: 

Accept the Fundamental Review Quarterly Project Report and direct staff to continue with 
implementation of the plan approved by DBOH in March 2014. 



07/14/2014

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual for possible approval 8/28/14
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established.
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ and Vital Statistics five days a week, accept IZ walk ins
b. Extended hours established.  Consider opportunities and costs for weekend clinical services
c. Discussion has begun with Interactive Voice Response software companies

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service began July 1, 2014
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

07/14/2014 2

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer was established on July 1, 2014

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, AQM timecoding is underway.  SAP issues

10
a. A proposed schedule approved on June 26, 2014 by DBOH.  Pilot will commence in August.

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Will be performed in conjunction with program const analysis.  See 10a

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Additional General Fund transfer provided in FY 15 adopted budget to support unrecoverable indirect costs.

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. The CHA is being conducted.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, EMS Oversight ILA being curculated for signatures.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis and SP to develop and implement performance mgmt. system

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on June 1, 2014

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

07/14/2014 3

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Cross-Divisional Q-Team established and Divisional QI projects conducted.

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 

DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: June 26, 2014 

DATE: July 14, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, 
and Emergency Medical Services  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update – Communicable Disease

a. Infant Botulism Case: - The CD program was notified on Monday, July 7th, of a 2-month-
old female with potential botulism that was inpatient at a local hospital.  On June 20th, the
infant developed symptoms of poor feeding, constipation, weakness, loss of head control,
and was experiencing “failure to thrive”.  CD program staff coordinated specimen
collection and delivery with both the NSPHL and the California Infant Botulism
Treatment and Prevention Program.  The botulism testing was performed in California and
preliminary results are positive for botulism type A.  The infant received BabyBIG on
Friday, July 11th.  An interview was conducted with the mother, but no potential source of
the illness was identified.

b. Pertussis update -Washoe County continues to see an increase in pertussis within our
community. As of July 14, 2014 the CD program has investigated 35 cases of pertussis.
In comparison to previous years, in all of 2013 the CD program investigated 22 cases of
pertussis and in all of 2012 the CD program investigated 17 cases of pertussis.

2. Program Update – Public Health Preparedness (PHP)

a. Division Directors and Supervisors/Managers received training on how to log into the
County’s online Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) tool.  This will allow all
Divisions to keep their continuity information updated.

b. The PHP Program hosted a National Association of City and County Health Officials
(NACCHO) representative at a quarterly statewide PHP partner’s meeting.  Resham
Patel of NACCHO provided and overview of Project Public Health Ready (PPHR),
which is a public health preparedness accreditation initiative.  The local health
districts in Nevada are considering their ability, readiness and benefits for attempting
PPHR accreditation.  The next step for Nevada’s health departments would be to

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.A.



 
 

conduct a gap analysis using a tool provided by NACCHO.  It was also pointed out 
that NACCHO has approached the Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) to 
explore whether or not PPHR accreditation could provide an automatic “sign-off” on 
relevant portions of the PHAB accreditation process. 
 

c. The Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) Coordinator participated in a statewide functional 
exercise designed to test the new volunteer management software from Intermedix.  
Intermedix has also recently purchased WebEOC which is a separate software 
product used for crisis information management.  It is hoped that these two products 
will begin to converge in functionality now that they are under common ownership. 
 
The MRC is currently in the final stages of processing a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with Saint Mary’s Regional Medical Center (SMRMC).  The 
MOU would authorize MRC volunteers to be deployed to SMRMC to provide 
assistance in the event of a surge of patients resulting from an emergency.  This is the 
first hospital in Northern Nevada that has been willing to enter into an MOU of this 
nature.  It is hoped that other Northern Nevada Hospitals will also be agreeable to 
entering into an MOU with the MRC. 
 

d. EPHP staff collaborated with EHS staff and completed an Emergency Water 
Restoration plan for the community.  Regional hospitals will receive a copy to assist 
with their emergency planning process.  Each regional hospital was met with in 
person during the planning period to review the plan progress and help the hospitals 
begin to gather information on the planning considerations.   
 

e. EPHP staff collaborated with community partners and completed the Disaster Call 
Center standard operating procedures for Crisis Call Center/NV 211 (CCC/NV211).  
These procedures provide the road-map for response for the community as well as 
CCC/NV211 in the event of an emergency that warrants call center activation.  The 
training sponsored by the Health District on this project yielded over 150 volunteers 
from Northern and Southern Nevada now trained in disaster call center procedures. 
 

f. EPHP staff collaborated with EHS staff member Mark Wickman and provided two 
training opportunities in the community.  This training was conducted for healthcare 
organizations and was the FEMA “ICS for Executives/Managers” course.  The 
purpose of the course is to give a high-level understanding of the Incident Command 
Structure and how it works in any type of emergency.   
 

g. EPHP staff collaborated with the Washoe County Medical Examiner’s (WCME) 
Office to conduct a tabletop exercise for the Northern Nevada Disaster Victim 
Recovery Team (NNDVRT).  This tabletop had participants from across Washoe 
County and neighboring jurisdictions.  The NNDVRT development has been a three 



 
 

year collaborative effort with the WCHD and WCME through the use of ASPR and 
CDC funding, under the Fatality Management capabilities. 
 

3. Program Update – Emergency Medical Services (EMS)  
 

a. EMS Program staff met with the Sparks Fire Chief to review EMS performance data 
in an area of special interest within the City of Sparks.  Sparks Fire provided a shape 
file and historical response data.  Staff worked with Washoe County GIS to plot 
response data on a map.  Staff also pulled historical data from REMSA on the same 
calls.  Moving forward, it is anticipated that staff will have access to more complete 
data from REMSA that will make performance analysis in specific geographic areas 
more robust. 
 

b. The Inter Local Agreement (ILA) that will authorize more complete EMS oversight 
and assure the ability of the Health District to have data for performance analysis is 
still going through the approval process.  It will be going before the Sparks City 
Council on July 14, the Reno City Council on July 16, and the Board of Fire 
Commissioners for the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District on July 22. 

  

 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

DIVISIONAL STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 24, 2014 

DATE: July 11, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update
a. Insight – Revenue Cycle Management (RCM) was implemented July 1, 2014. Staff plans

to begin implementation of the Family Planning and STD Field Questions modules this
September.

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – CCHS and AHS staff are watching a webinar series on
cost analysis of clinical services and implementation of resource based relative value
scale (RBRVS). RBRVS was established by the Centers for Medicaid and Medicare
Services (CMS). Once implemented in CCHS, this will allow programs to best cover
expenses for clinical services provided.

c. Data/Metrics – Note: There were no MCAH home visits conducted in June as staff
worked on the closure of the home visitation program.

365 
166 167 

424 

0 

1122 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

IZ TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
June 2013 and June 2014 

June 2013 June 2014

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2441 FAX (775) 328-3750 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.B.



 
 
 

Number of WIC Participants Served* - May 2014: 
Women 
Prenatal  

Women 
Postpartum  
Non-breastfeeding  

Women 
Postpartum 
Breastfeeding 

Infants  
0-12 Months 

Children  
1-5 Years  

 
TOTAL 
 

530 329 427 1,198 2,990 5,474 
*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of 
the month and participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 
 
Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes 
in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, all which may affect the availability of 
services.  
 
2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 

a. Sexual Health – Staff is in the planning process for implementation of Anti-Retroviral 
Treatment and Access to Services (ARTAS). ARTAS is strength based individual level 
evidence-based intervention that encourages the client to identify and use personal 
strengths to create and follow through with goals related to their individual HIV care. In 
addition, staff met with a community partner, Northern Nevada HOPES, and discussed 
plans to implement this program and to determine how to continue to improve HIV 
positive client linkage to care. 
 
The Sexual Health Program has provided HIV/STD testing and Twinrix (Hepatitis A and 
B Vaccine) administration at the Washoe County Detention Facility (WCDF) for over 
twenty years.  Recently the WCDF contracted with Armor as their health services 
provider.  Staff initiated a meeting with the new administration to educate them regarding 
the Sexual Health Program’s role in the community and to determine how to best 
continue collaboration.  Additional meetings and conversation will continue to ensure the 
best possible sexual health services to the WCDF population.   
 

b. Immunizations – The Immunization Program has hired a 24 hour per week Office 
Assistant II with a start date of July 22, 2014.  This position is a reclassification which 
will help to provide clerical support for expanding on-site services of the Immunization 
Clinic to five days per week.  Starting the week of July 21st, immunizations will be 
offered on Tuesdays and Thursdays, beginning with half-day clinics, with the plan to go 
to full days by Fall 2014. 
 
An adult immunization planning meeting was held on July 8, 2014 with Catholic 
Charities of Northern Nevada and Immunize Nevada to discuss opportunities for 
increasing services to vulnerable populations.  
  

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – TB staff and John Warren, WCHD 
contract Pharmacist, will be meeting with the State Board of Pharmacy to coordinate a 
notification for all registered pharmacists. The notification will review the requirement 



 
 
 

that pharmacists must report to the local health authority within 24 hours when they 
dispense two or more tuberculosis medications. As part of the MCAH restructure, 
recommended by the Fundamental Review, Holly McGee has been reassigned to the TB 
program. Jessica Ponce, Public Health Associate from the CDC, will be assigned to the 
TB program for the next year; Jessica spent her first year in CCHS with the Sexual 
Health Program.   

 
d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Recruitment for a part time Advanced Practice 

Registered Nursing position was re-opened, as the last recruitment was unsuccessful.  
Advertisements for the vacancy have been placed in the Nevada State Board of Nursing 
magazine and online at nursingALD.com.  Interviews for the vacant part time bilingual 
Community Health Aide will take place at the end of this month.  Staff is working on the 
semiannual Title X grant report, which is due in August.   
 

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Kelli Goatley-Seals has been working 
on the statewide task force for the Nevada School Wellness Policy.  The policy has been 
updated and is available on the Nevada Department of Agriculture website.  This Policy 
will be disseminated to all school districts in Nevada in August. Kelli will be working 
with the Washoe County School District on implementation strategies.  

 
Play equipment kits continue to be distributed to preschools that have developed wellness 
policies.  In partnership with the American Heart Association, three kits were delivered in 
June with an additional five scheduled for July.  Staff will be targeting before and after 
school centers in the Fall to encourage wellness policy development. 
 
Staff submitted a grant proposal to the Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health 
(DPBH) for a CDC grant to address heart disease, stroke prevention and diabetes 
prevention.  This grant would provide funding to work on creating toolkits to implement 
beverage and nutrition standards, increasing availability and accessibility of fruits and 
vegetables, strengthening community promotion of physical activity, as well as working 
with state and local efforts to support lifestyle change programs. 
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – The clinic based Maternal Child 
Health program will begin service on July 15, 2014, with 20 hours per week of PHN 
time. The Fetal Infant Mortality Review (FIMR) program was implemented on July 1, 
2014. Flyers for the clinic and FIMR are at the end of this report. Staff will conduct a 
webinar on July 30, 2014 with Dr. Nathan Slotnick and Dr. Earle Oki to introduce FIMR 
to the community. March of Dimes will sponsor the webinar. 
 

g. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) – 
To further encourage and support breastfeeding, WIC is collaborating with the Renown 
Newborn Center in a pilot project to issue hospital grade breast pumps for qualified WIC 



 
 
 

women to breastfeed their at risk infants. For the duration, clients may go to or contact 
WIC at any time for assistance with breastfeeding problems or to return a loaned breast 
pump. 
 
WIC staff completed the required semi-annual Voter Registration Training. Mandated by 
the National Voter Registration Act, WIC offers and assists all WIC applicants at 
certification and recertification, anytime with a change of address and at least every six 
months thereafter, in completing voter registration. 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 24, 2014 

DATE: July 10, 2014  

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, Vector-Borne 
Disease, Waste Management, and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• Interviews scheduled on July 15 for the vacant Environmental Health Specialist position.

• BCC Meeting 7/8/2014 - Update on medical marijuana establishments and state
applications: Item 16. Assistant County Manager Kevin Schiller gave an update on medical
marijuana establishments in the State of Nevada and Washoe County. Commissioners
discussed marijuana dispensary allocations, looked at zoning maps of areas eligible for
dispensaries and the process applicants must go through to qualify for a license. The Board
must take action on marijuana dispensary allocation by August 12, if they want to increase
the allocation. "I'm proud of our staff and this Board that we got ahead of the medical
marijuana issue and will soon be offering it as a remedy for those who need it," said
Commissioner Kitty Jung. "Staff has worked hard and it will pay off by helping many people
who call me saying this is vital to solving their various health issues."

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• The Food Protection Program has been awarded approval for the third year of a five year
grant from FDA. The grant is assisting to advance the conformance with the FDA
Voluntary National Retail Standards.

• Special Events/Temporary Food:  The numbers for FY 13/14 are final.  Staff conducted
2,117 inspections and issued 2,063 permits.  Special Events/Temporary Food Permits
have averaged approximately 2,000 annually since 2005.  Fiscal inspection totals are
attached from FY01/02 through FY13/14.

o Staff conducted 127 inspections at the Reno Rodeo in June.  There are currently fourteen
(14) active Farmers Markets, more than any other jurisdiction in Nevada or Northern
California.  To kickoff FY14/15, EHS had the most permits ever issued for a 4th of July
week including more than 70 new permits during July 4 through 6, requiring mandated
inspections.  Staff completed 104 inspections during this three day period, Friday through
Sunday.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.C.

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/large_files/agendas/070814/16.pdf
http://www.washoecounty.us/large_files/agendas/070814/16.pdf
http://www.washoecounty.us/comdev/medical_marijuana.htm


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: July 24, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

Land Development  

• Staff is seeing a steady volume of Special Use Permit Applications, parcel map reviews 
and commercial projects routed to EHS for review.  Development is taking place at an 
increased rate month over month. 

• Staff reviewed and approved 4 water projects. 

Vector-Borne Disease  

• The Vector-Borne Diseases Program conducted their third helicopter application on July 
10. Approximately 950 acres were treated from Lemmon Valley to Damonte Ranch with 
the biological Altosid product (see attached). 

• The Program will begin their scheduled catch basin survey and treatments.  As water 
flows down and over the curb from irrigation, water collects in the sumps of these catch 
basins producing hundreds of mosquito larvae.  These street incubators provide a rich and 
organic environment for mosquitoes to thrive in.  One of the mosquito types produced in 
these catch basins is Culex Pipiens, also known as the Little House Mosquito, as its name 
implies they find their way into homes.  The importance of this mosquito is it has the 
capability of transmitting West Nile virus.  

• Four individuals were potentially exposed to a rabid bat.  The hikers found the bat on a 
hiking trail at Davis Creek Park and came into close contact while attempting to nurse the 
mammal back to health.  Staff contacted the individuals who may have been exposed 
advising them to seek post exposure treatment.  

• With building projects increasing, staff is busy with these inspections ensuring that 
contractors have complied and completed our infrastructure designs prior to our sign off.  
As of July 11, staff closed five (5) building projects already this month. 

Waste Management  

• Staff is seeing the normal seasonal increase in citizen complaints related to garbage, trash 
and manure issues.   

• Permitted facilities have now rebounded to pre-recession levels at which time the 
program also had oversight of the Lockwood Regional Landfill and all associated 
permits. 

EHS 2014 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 
 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD Mo. Avg 
Child Care 6 3 7 13 10 27 66 11 
Complaints 70 74 68 96 101 97 506 84 
Food 499 312 452 388 475 364 2,490 415 
General 63 67 118 62 383 134 827 138 
Plan Review (Commercial Food/Pools/Spas) 14 3 4 3 14 14 48 8 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 21 29 32 39 41 47 209 35 
Residential Septic Inspections   37 45 33 74 189 47 
Well Permits 11 0 5 6 6 15 43 7 
Waste Management 12 20 29 9 12 21 103 17 

  TOTAL 696 508 752 661 1,075 789 4,481 763 
*  General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools; 

Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 



FY July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total
01/02 152 597 274 90 77 12 19 25 39 31 130 312 1,758  
02/03 237 609 219 136 56 27 30 33 79 68 151 393 2,038  
03/04 342 633 399 209 56 12 24 37 55 75 69 327 2,238  
04/05 314 416 535 147 49 11 56 24 34 83 74 391 2,134  
05/06 275 448 609 104 45 7 45 19 44 30 49 310 1,985  
06/07 153 517 546 71 43 7 35 53 60 62 185 351 2,083  
07/08 222 643 802 145 16 12 37 38 58 105 127 405 2,610  
08/09 251 1037 424 170 28 13 50 35 21 146 151 472 2,798  
09/10 316 545 821 158 29 9 30 37 95 65 202 481 2,788  
10/11 267 544 901 156 51 12 24 54 85 105 186 497 2,882  
11/12 250 650 698 125 59 26 45 57 62 62 103 503 2,640  
12/13 222 767 481 128 50 11 20 44 30 43 161 435 2,392  
13/14 190 685 225 140 83 35 28 33 62 84 132 420 2,117  

Washoe County District Health Department                                                         
Special Events Program Inspections

 1,758  
 2,038  

 2,238   2,134  
 1,985   2,083  

 2,610  
 2,798   2,788   2,882  

 2,640  
 2,392  

 2,117  

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14

N
um

be
r o

f I
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 

Fiscal Year 

Special Events and Temporary Food Inspections in Washoe County 



 
 

 
 

Mosquito Abatement Scheduled Thursday for Truckee Meadows 
Posted: Jul 09, 2014 5:09 PM PDT 
Updated: Jul 10, 2014 10:07 AM PDT 
 
From the Washoe County Health District 
 
The Washoe County Health District Vector-Borne Diseases Prevention Program will be conducting their third 
scheduled mosquito abatement operation beginning at 6:00 a.m., on Thursday, July 10. Helicopter 
applications of Altosid will be applied to 950 acres in Lemmon Valley, Kiley Ranch, Red Hawk, Rosewood 
Lakes, Butler Ranch, South Meadows, Damonte Ranch and Washoe Valley. 
 
After finding a positive mosquito sample for Saint Louis encephalitis in June, weekly disease surveillance 
trappings since then have been negative in the Truckee Meadows area. However, according to health officials, 
with warmer weather the mosquito population is expected to increase during the summer months. So in 
addition to abatement efforts, the Washoe County Vector-Borne Diseases Program conducts scheduled catch 
basin surveys and treatments. According to Washoe County Health District Vector-Borne Diseases Prevention 
Program Supervisor Jim Shaffer, “As water flows down curbs from over irrigation, water collects in the sumps 
of these catch basins making a perfect environment for producing hundreds of mosquito larvae.” One of the 
mosquito types produced in these catch basins is Culex pipiens also known as the Little House Mosquito 
because they find their way into homes. This mosquito has the capability of transmitting West Nile virus, so 
Shaffer is asking residents to call the Vector-Borne Disease Prevention Program at 785-4599 if they are 
experiencing increased mosquito activity. It may be caused by the catch basins becoming colonized with 
mosquitoes. 
 
People can stay protected against mosquito bites by using the following precautions: 
 
• Wear long pants and long sleeved shirts and apply Deet, Picaridin, Oil of Lemon Eucalyptus, or other natural 
products to protect you from biting mosquitoes. Two layers of repellent may be applied, one on the skin and a 
second on the clothing. 
 
• Repair tears in doors and window screens around your home or office, or keep them closed to keep 
mosquitoes outside. 
 
• Eliminate standing water or any objects that can trap or collect water around your property which provide 
breeding grounds for mosquitos. 
 
The Washoe County Vector-Borne Diseases Program also provides free Mosquito Fish for ponds, troughs or 
water features in or around your property. For more information about the Washoe County Vector-Borne 
Diseases Program visit: http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vector/mma.html. 
 
Note regarding Altosid: Altosid is a pellet that disrupts the normal growth pattern of immature mosquitoes in 
water and prevents them from becoming biting adults. Altosid naturally degrades in the environment and will 
not adversely affects humans, fish, waterfowl or beneficial insects and can be used in sensitive areas. 
 

From the Washoe County Health District 

 
 

 
 



Washoe County Health District Abates Mosquitoes 
Posted: Jul 10, 2014 1:02 PM PDT Updated: Jul 10, 2014 2:59 PM PDT  
By Landon Miller - email 

 
  

 

The Washoe County Health District is working to keep mosquito activity under control this summer. 
 
On Thursday, they applied Altosid- a pellet designed to prevent baby mosquitoes from growing up- over three areas: 
Hidden Valley, Spanish Springs, and South Meadows.  
 
Early Wednesday, the Vector-Borne Diseases Prevention Program began spraying Rosewood Lakes Golf Course.  
 
“When we target it, it’s not going to hurt humans, or biological predators in the water,” said Jim Shaffer with Washoe 
County Health District. “It’s specifically for mosquito larvae.”  
 
The pellets alone cost the county $100,000. However, they say that is money well spent because it prevents 
mosquitoes from biting, and spreading disease.  
 
The county also gives out free fish to county residents that can eat mosquitoes.  
 
“They’re live bearing and they’re surface feeders,” said Will Lumpkin with the Washoe County Health District. “So 
they swim around and feed on insects that float on the surface of the water.”  
 
If you would like to report a mosquito problem, or get fish, call 775-785-4599.  
 
You can also go to their website: Vector-Borne Diseases Prevention Program  

 
 

mailto:lmiller@ktvn.com?body=http://www.ktvn.com/story/25989627/washoe-county-abates-mosquitoes
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/4177245_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/4177245_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/4177245_G.jpg
http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vbdp.html
http://www.washoecounty.us/health/ehs/vbdp.html
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/4177245_G.jpg


WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 24, 2014 

DATE: July 8, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update – Keep It Clean – nO3zone Season, Divisional Update—Monthly Air 
Quality Index; Program Reports – Monitoring & Planning and Permitting & 
Enforcement 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. Keep it Clean - nO3zone Season

The month of June marks the beginning of the ozone season in the Truckee
Meadows.  Ozone is created by chemical reactions between oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and
volatile organic compounds (VOCs) in the presence of sunlight.  In the Truckee Meadows,
motor vehicles are the largest manmade source of ozone precursors followed by industrial
facilities using chemical solvents.  On sunny days in urban environments ozone may reach
unhealthy levels.  In an effort to provide our community with information regarding the
causes and effects of ozone, the Air Quality Management Division will be promoting our
Keep it Clean – nO3zone campaign throughout the summer.  If ground level ozone does
reach unhealthy levels, recommendations to protect your health include:

 Reducing the time you are active outdoors
 Scheduling outdoor activities for the morning or evening when ozone levels are

usually lower.
 Substituting a less intense activity.  An example is to go for a walk instead of a

run.

Ozone can also be transported over long distances by wind.  Ozone generated in large 
urban areas may be transported to rural areas resulting in high ozone levels in areas that do 
not have the traditional sources of precursors.  With the advancement of science, the 
recognition of regional transport of air pollution is becoming a frequent topic of 
discussion.  Since Washoe County did experience the first exceedance of the ozone 
ambient air quality standard on May 17th while temperatures were relatively low and 
winds were present, the subject of regional transport is becoming a priority.   In 
recognition of the issue, AQMD staff has begun working with the Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection Bureau of Air Quality Planning and the Clark County 
Department of Air Quality to develop a statewide message and plan to address the 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.D.



July 24, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 

issue.  The group will also be working with Western States Air Resources Council which 
represents fifteen states extending from Alaska to New Mexico and from Hawaii to South 
Dakota. The ultimate goal will be to have a plan that will be recognized and supported by 
EPA Region IX.  We realize this will be a long term project but the potential impacts to 
public health and economic development will more than justify the efforts. 

 
In the meantime, the Keep it Clean – nO3zone campaign will continue to provide the 
community with the following solutions that can help to reduce ozone levels, improve 
health, and save money as well: 

 
 Conserve electricity and set your air conditioner at a higher temperature; 
 Give your car a rest – share a ride to work or take public 

transportation.  Bicycle or walk to errands when possible; 
 Refuel your car after dusk; 
 Combine errands to reduce trips; 
 Limit engine idling, especially near schools; 
 Keep your car tuned up and make sure your tires are properly inflated; and 
 Take your lunch to work and avoid an extra trip during the heat of the day. 

 
You can find more helpful tips under the Keep it Clean - nO3zone campaign 
at www.OurCleanAir.com .  Together, we can Keep it Clean! 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


July 24, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
2. Divisional Update   
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of June.  
The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and it also has the highest AQI from 
the previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The bottom chart indicates the 
number of days by AQI category and it also has the previous year to date for comparison. 

 

 
 

 
 

Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered 
preliminary.  As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, 
guidance, or any other governmental or public decision,  For a daily depiction of the AQI 
data, please visit www.OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary. 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


July 24, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
3. Program Reports 
 

a. Monitoring & Planning  
 
There were no exceedances of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS) 
during June.   
 
The public inspection period for the “2014 Ambient Air Monitoring Network Plan” 
closed on June 30.  This annual plan is required by 40 CFR 58.10 and summarizes the 
monitoring network operations in 2013.  It also includes proposed network modifications 
for 2014-2015.  No written comments were received and the plan was submitted to EPA 
on July 1. 
 
Also on July 1, the public comment period began for the draft exceptional events 
demonstration for last year’s American and Rim Fire episodes.  AQMD is requesting 
EPA to exclude PM2.5 data that were affected by wildfire smoke when determining 
attainment for the NAAQS.  The request is available at OurCleanAir.com and anticipated 
to be submitted to EPA in August 2014.  Planning staff has been coordinating with the 
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) to share data and resources.   
 
Planning staff will be attending a two-day specialty conference sponsored by the Air & 
Waste Management Association in August.  The conference will focus on strategies to 
reduce residential woodsmoke.  Woodsmoke accounts for approximately half of the 
wintertime fine particulate matter (PM2.5) emissions in the Truckee Meadows. 

 
A public hearing for a revision to DBOH Regulations Governing Air Quality 
Management Section 030.600, Prevention of Significant Deterioration, is anticipated for 
the August 28, 2014 DBOH meeting.  The revision is to address minor language 
deficiencies in order for it to be approved by EPA.  Planning staff has been coordinating 
the revision with EPA Region IX’s Office of Regional Counsel to ensure the proposed 
revision will be approvable.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July 24, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 

b. Permitting & Enforcement 
 

Type of Permit 
2014 2013 

June YTD June Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 145 432 151 1339 

New Authorities to Construct 10 55 3 88 

Dust Control Permits 12 
(142 acres) 

61 17 
(182 acres) 

105 
(1420 acres) 

Wood Stove Certificates 26 179 42 329 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 4 50 3 
(1 replacement) 

134 
(83 replacements) 

WS Notice of Exemptions 531 
(6 stoves removed) 

3383 
(33 stoves 
removed) 

765 
(8 stoves removed) 

7346 
(83 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 69 402 62 828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 26 102 17 199 

 
 
Staff reviewed thirteen (13) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 
 
 
Staff conducted seventy (70) stationary source renewal inspections and fifty-one (51) gas 
station inspections in June 2014.  Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and 
construction/dust projects. 
 
Following a very competitive internal promotional recruitment, Mr. Mike Wolf was selected 
to fill the vacant Air Quality Supervisor position.  Mr. Wolf has been the Environmental 
Engineer II in the Permitting Section for two (2) years and has in excess of twenty (20) years 
of air quality experience to this position.   
 
A job announcement was posted on June 26th to fill the now vacant Environmental Engineer II 
position.  This is an open competitive recruitment which will close on July 17th. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July 24, 2014 
AQM Division Report 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

 

COMPLAINTS 
2014* 2013 

June YTD June Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 1 11 2 18 

Burning 0 3 0 8 

Construction Dust 3 15 1 0 

Dust Control Permit 1 9 0 7 

General Dust 10 29 2 46 

Diesel Idling 0 3 0 8 

Odor 1 7 1 16 

Spray Painting 1 4 1 5 

Permit to Operate 5 18 2 55 

Woodstove 0 8 0 16 

TOTAL 22 107 9 209 

NOV’s June YTD June Annual 
Total 

Warnings 6 13 2 46 
Citations 2 5 3 40 
TOTAL 8 18 5 86 

 
*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: July 24, 2014 

DATE: July 15, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - REMSA/EMS, Fundamental Review, Permit 
Software Project, Community Health Needs Assessment, Staffing, Other 
Events & Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
REMSA / EMS 

I participated in a meeting on June 26 with the Reno City Manager and Fire and Battalion Chiefs, 
REMSA representatives, a 911 Dispatch representative and EMS Program staff to discuss changes to 
Reno Fire EMS response criteria to no longer respond to Priority 3 calls.  The meeting identified work 
between REMSA and RFD to determine appropriate identification of Priority 1 and 2 calls, and the 
mechanism and procedure for communication of call Priority to RFD.   

On June 30, I participated in a meeting with Washoe County Manager, Sparks City Manager, the Fire 
Chiefs of RFD, SFD, and NLTFPD, Battalion Chiefs from TMFPD, a Sheriff representative, REMSA 
staff, and EMS Program staff discuss the RFD EMS response change and the work that was underway 
from the June 26 meeting to identify and discuss concerns from the other jurisdictions and EMS 
response agencies.  A meeting of the EMS working group was held on July 11 to report out on the 
work initiated at the June 26 meeting and respond to information requested at the June 30 meeting. 

The Regional EMS Oversight ILA was approved during the July 14 Sparks City Council Meeting, 
and is agendized for the July 16 Reno City Council Meeting, and is expected to be on the agenda for 
the July 22 Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Board meeting.  The ILA was approved by 
BCC and DBOH in June.  (Fundamental Review Item 16) 

Permit Software Project 
Washoe County signed the contract with Accela to initiate the Regional Business License and Permit 
Software Project on June 30.  The implementation kick-off will occur July 22 when the Accela team 
will visit Reno to begin the 16 month implementation to “go live.” 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2416 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.F.



 
 

Community Health Needs Assessment 
Work continues on the Community Health Needs Assessment through the Nevada Public Health 
Foundation’s Independent Contractor, Heather Kerwin.  Focus groups are being conducted to gather 
information on what community members consider to be a healthy community and what they identify 
as their health related needs, as of 7/15/14, four focus groups have been completed and data are 
currently being analyzed for thematic similarities and differences between various participating 
subgroups. This form of primary data collection should be complete by end of August. Secondary data 
has been collected for several health indicators including: population demographics, environmental 
health factors (air/H2O), maternal and child health, cancer screening and diagnostic rates, chronic 
diseases, communicable diseases, income, wage and economic data, traffic and pedestrian safety, 
violent and property crimes, education, morbidity, vaccination rates, drug overdose deaths, as well as 
sexual and mental health behaviors and outcomes. There are several indicators for which data requests 
are pending or data is currently being sought after via research.  
 
Ms. Kerwin’s work is directed through a Community Health Need Assessment Subcommittee of the 
Truckee Meadows Healthy Community Conference Planning Committee.  The subcommittee meets 
biweekly and updates to the planning committee are provided on a monthly basis.  The CHNA is 
expected to be completed by the end of December 2014. (Fundamental Review Item 14) 
 
Staffing 
Interviews of candidates for the Administrative Health Services Officer are scheduled for July 16.  
Recruitments were initiated for the vacant Department Systems Specialist position and the new Office 
Assistant II for Vital Records, and EMS Program Manager and EMS Coordinator positions. 
 
Office of the District Health Officer (ODHO) 
The ODHO was established effective July 1.  The Office includes the Health Officer, 
Communications Program Manager, a Public Health Nurse (serving as the QI/Accreditation 
Readiness Coordinator and HIPAA compliance Officer, Margot Jordan from CCHS) and 
Administrative Secretary. 
 
Other Events and Activities 
A General Staff meeting was held on July 1.  Q-Team members provided presentations on the Quality 
Improvement Projects within each of the Divisions. 
 
A Division Director/Supervisor Meeting was held on July 2, and A Division Director meeting was 
held on July 23.   I conduct individual meetings with the Division Directors on a bi-weekly schedule. 
 
I attended a meeting with the Nevada County Health Officer and Tahoe Forest Hospital Community 
Wellness Director to discuss Community Health Assessment efforts, and exchange 
information/updates.  A follow-up meeting was scheduled for July 18 to discuss immunization 
outreach and potential for coordination in light of August being National Immunization month, 
upcoming school vaccinations, and the high rates of pertussis occurring in California.  The Placer 
County Health Officer will also attend. 
 
I traveled to Atlanta to attend the annual NACCHO conference the week of July 7-10. 
 
I attended a meeting with the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation cross jurisdictional sharing Carson 
City site visit on July 15. 



 
 

 
I attended the REMSA Board meeting on July 18th. 
 
I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.   
 
Health District Media Contacts: June 13-July 14, 2014 
 
DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

    07/14/13 Reno Gazette-Journal Jeff Delong Heat - Ulibarri 

07/11/14 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell REMSA -Reno Fire Department - Health Officer Dick 

07/10/14 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Colin Lygren Mosquito Abatement - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

07/10/14 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Landon Miller Mosquito Abatement - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

07/10/14 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno 
Samantha 
Boatman Mosquito Abatement - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

07/10/14 KUNR 88.7 FM Radio - NPR Reno Han Gray Mosquito Abatement - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

07/09/14 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Whooping Cough (Pertussis) - Shore/Ulibarri 

07/09/14 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Landon Miller 
Vector Born Disease Prevention Program - 
Shaffer/Lumpkin 

07/01/14 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Ed Pierce Ozone - Inouye 

06/30/14 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Heat - Ulibarri 

06/30/14 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Ashley Cullins Pertussis/Whooping Cough - Ulibarri 

06/30/14 Reno Gazette - Journal Tim Dunn Immunizations 

06/30/14 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Landon Miller Heat - Ulibarri 

06/25/14 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Racheal Mosley Childhood Overweight/Obesity - Seals 

06/24/14 Reno Gazette - Journal Jason Hidalgo Increase in cases of measles and pertussis in California 

06/23/14 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Folic Acid Nutrition Report - Ulibarri 

06/17/14 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Chikungunya virus - Shaffer/Ulibarri 

06/16/14 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Paul Nelson Chikungunya Virus 

    Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 
  

    07/09/14 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Mosquito Abatement 

06/27/14 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Heat Precautions 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	5. Approval/ Additions/ Deletions to Minutes
	June 26, 2014

	7. Proclamations
	A. National Immunization Awareness Month
	Proclamation

	B. World Breastfeeding Week
	Proclamation


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. Air Quality Management Cases
	a. Chottu-Arco Station


	9. REMSA
	Reports

	10. Revenue and Expenditure Report
	Report

	11. Cost of Living Adjustment for DHO
	Staff Report

	12. Fundamental Review Report
	Report

	13. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. EPHP
	Report

	B. CCHS
	Report

	C. EHS
	Report

	D. AQM 
	Report

	F. DHO
	Report





